
 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

TOWN OF PAONIA 
TUESDAY, JUNE 25, 2019 

SPECIAL TOWN BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

6:30 PM 
 

 

Roll Call 

Approval of Agenda 

Announcements 

Recognition of Visitors & Guests 

Consent Agenda 

 

1. Minutes: May 28, 2019 

Minutes: June 11, 2019 

Mayor’s Report 

Staff Reports 

 

2. Town Administrators Report 

3. Public Works Report 

4. Police Department Report 

5. Town Treasurer Report 

Disbursements 

New Business 

 

6. US House Subcommittee on Energy & Minerals Leasing Reform Legislation  

7. Midweek Market Proposal 

8. Requested Discussion - Fence Height 

9. Parks Master Planning Grant - Great Outdoors Colorado 

10. Employee Health Plan Renewal  

11. Clark Avenue Sewer Line Bid Review 

Committee Reports 

 

Finance & Personnel 

Public Works/Utilities/Facilities 

Governmental Affairs/Public Safety 

Space to Create 

Tree Board 

Adjournment 
 

  

1



 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

AS ADOPTED BY: 

TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-10 – Amended May 22, 2018 

 

I. RULES OF PROCEDURE 

 

Section 1.  Schedule of Meetings.  Regular Board of Trustees meetings shall be held on the second and fourth Tuesdays of each 

month, except on legal holidays, or as re-scheduled or amended and posted on the agenda prior to the scheduled meeting. 

 

Section 2.  Officiating Officer.  The meetings of the Board of Trustees shall be conducted by the Mayor or, in the Mayor’s 

absence, the Mayor Pro-Tem.  The Town Clerk or a designee of the Board shall record the minutes of the meetings. 

 

Section 3.  Time of Meetings.  Regular meetings of the Board of Trustees shall begin at 6:30 p.m. or as scheduled and posted on 

the agenda. Board Members shall be called to order by the Mayor.  The meetings shall open with the presiding officer leading 

the Board in the Pledge of Allegiance.  The Town Clerk shall then proceed to call the roll, note the absences and announce 

whether a quorum is present.  Regular Meetings are scheduled for three hours, and shall be adjourned at 9:30 p.m., unless a 

majority of the Board votes in the affirmative to extend the meeting, by a specific amount of time.  

 

Section 4. Schedule of Business.  If a quorum is present, the Board of Trustees shall proceed with the business before it, which 

shall be conducted in the following manner.  Note that all provided times are estimated:  

 

 (a) Roll Call - (5 minutes) 

 (b) Approval of Agenda - (5 minutes) 

 (c) Announcements (5 minutes) 

 (d) Recognition of Visitors and Guests (10 minutes) 

 (e) Consent Agenda including Approval of Prior Meeting Minutes (10 minutes) 

 (f) Mayor’s Report (10 minutes) 

 (g) Staff Reports: (15 minutes) 

  (1) Town Administrator’s Report 

  (2) Public Works Reports  

  (3) Police Report 

  (4) Treasurer Report 

      

 (h) Unfinished Business (45 minutes) 

 (i) New Business (45 minutes) 

 (j) Disbursements (15 minutes) 

 (k) Committee Reports (15 minutes) 

 (l) Adjournment 

 

  * This schedule of business is subject to change and amendment. 

  

Section 5. Priority and Order of Business. Questions relative to the priority of business and order shall be decided by the 

Mayor without debate, subject in all cases to an appeal to the Board of Trustees.  

 

Section 6.  Conduct of Board Members.   Town Board Members shall treat other Board Members and the public in a civil and 

polite manner and shall comply with the Standards of Conduct for Elected Officials of the Town.  Board Members shall 

address Town Staff and the Mayor by his/her title, other Board Members by the title of Trustee or the appropriate honorific 

(i.e.: Mr., Mrs. or Ms.), and members of the public by the appropriate honorific.  Subject to the Mayor’s discretion, Board 

Members shall be limited to speaking two times when debating an item on the agenda.  Making a motion, asking a question or 

making a suggestion are not counted as speaking in a debate.  

 

Section 7. Presentations to the Board.  Items on the agenda presented by individuals, businesses or other organizations shall be 

given up to 5 minutes to make a presentation.  On certain issues, presenters may be given more time, as determined by the 

Mayor and Town Staff.  After the presentation, Trustees shall be given the opportunity to ask questions. 

 

Section 8. Public Comment.  After discussion of an agenda item by the Board of Trustees has concluded, the Mayor shall open 

the floor for comment from members of the public, who shall be allowed the opportunity to comment or ask questions on the 

agenda item.  Each member of the public wishing to address the Town Board shall be recognized by the presiding officer 

before speaking.  Members of the public shall speak from the podium, stating their name, the address of their residence and 

any group they are representing prior to making comment or asking a question.  Comments shall be directed to the Mayor or 

presiding officer, not to an individual Trustee or Town employee.  Comments or questions should be confined to the agenda 

2



 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

item or issue(s) under discussion.  The speaker should offer factual information and refrain from obscene language and 

personal attacks. 

 

Section 9.  Unacceptable Behavior. Disruptive behavior shall result in expulsion from the meeting.   

 

Section 10.  Posting of Rules of Procedure for Paonia Board of Trustees Meetings. These rules of procedure shall be provided 

in the Town Hall meeting room for each Board of Trustees meeting so that all attendees know how the meeting will be 

conducted. 

 

II. CONSENT AGENDA 

 

Section 1. Use of Consent Agenda. The Mayor, working with Town Staff, shall place items on the Consent Agenda. By using a 

Consent Agenda, the Board has consented to the consideration of certain items as a group under one motion. Should a 

Consent Agenda be used at a meeting, an appropriate amount of discussion time will be allowed to review any item upon 

request.  

Section 2. General Guidelines. Items for consent are those which usually do not require discussion or explanation prior to 

action by the Board, are non-controversial and/or similar in content, or are those items which have already been discussed or 

explained and do not require further discussion or explanation. Such agenda items may include ministerial tasks such as, but 

not limited to, approval of previous meeting minutes, approval of staff reports, addressing routine correspondence, approval 

of liquor licenses renewals and approval or extension of other Town licenses. Minor changes in the minutes such as non-

material Scribner errors may be made without removing the minutes from the Consent Agenda.  Should any Trustee feel there 

is a material error in the minutes, they should request the minutes be removed from the Consent Agenda for Board discussion. 

Section 3. Removal of Item from Consent Agenda. One or more items may be removed from the Consent Agenda by a timely 

request of any Trustee. A request is timely if made prior to the vote on the Consent Agenda. The request does not require a 

second or a vote by the Board. An item removed from the Consent Agenda will then be discussed and acted on separately 

either immediately following the consideration of the Consent Agenda or placed later on the agenda, at the discretion of the 

Board.  

 

III.  EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

Section 1.  An executive session may only be called at a regular or special Board meeting where official action may be taken 

by the Board, not at a work session of the Board.  To convene an executive session, the Board shall announce to the public in 

the open meeting the topic to be discussed in the executive session, including specific citation to the statute authorizing the 

Board to meet in an executive session and identifying the particular matter to be discussed “in as much detail as possible 

without compromising the purpose for which the executive session is authorized.” In the even the Board plans to discuss more 

than one of the authorized topics in the executive session, each should be announced, cited and described. Following the 

announcement of the intent to convene an executive session, a motion must then be made and seconded.  In order to go into 

executive session, there must be the affirmative vote of two thirds (2/3) of Members of the Board. 

 

Section 2.  During executive session, minutes or notes of the deliberations should not be taken. Since meeting minutes are 

subject to inspection under the Colorado Open Records Act, the keeping of minutes would defeat the private nature of 

executive session. In addition, the deliberations carried out during executive session should not be discussed outside of that 

session or with individuals not participating in the session.  The contexts of an executive session are to remain confidential 

unless a majority of the Trustees vote to disclose the contents of the executive session. 

 

Section 3.  Once the deliberations have taken place in executive session, the Board should reconvene in regular session to take 

any formal action decided upon during the executive session.  If you have questions regarding the wording of the motion or 

whether any other information should be disclosed on the record, it is essential for you to consult with the Town Attorney on 

these matters. 

 

 

IV. SUBJECT TO AMENDMENT 

 

Section 1. Deviations.  The Board may deviate from the procedures set forth in this Resolution, if, in its sole discretion, such 

deviation is necessary under the circumstances. 

Section 2.  Amendment.   The Board may amend these Rules of Procedures Policy from time to time. 

  

3



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

May 23, 2019 
 

 

Roll Call 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

4



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

May 23, 2019 
 

 

Approval of Agenda 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

5



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

May 23, 2019 
 

 

Announcements 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

6



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

May 23, 2019 
 

 

Visitors & Guests 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

7



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

June 24, 2019 
 

 

Consent Agenda 

Summary:   

 

 

 

Notes: 

Minutes: May 25, 2019 

Minutes: June 11, 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

8



 

  

MAY 28, 2019 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 1 

 

Minutes 

Regular Town Board Meeting 

Town of Paonia, Colorado 

May 28, 2019 

  

 

RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 

 

Roll Call 
 

 PRESENT 

Mayor Charles Stewart 

Mayor Pro-Tem Chelsea Bookout 

Trustee Mary Bachran 

Trustee William Bear 

Trustee Karen Budinger 

Trustee Samira Hart 

Trustee Dave Knutson 

 

Approval of Agenda 
 

Motion made by Trustee Hart, Seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout to amend agenda 

removing Clark Avenue Sewer-line Bid Award. Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, 

Trustee Bachran, Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Hart, Trustee Knutson. 

 

Announcements 
 

 Administrator Knight is on vacation and out of the office until June 9
th

. 

 

Recognition of Visitors & Guests 
 

 None. 

 

Consent Agenda 

 

The Board of Trustees were given five (5) minutes to review draft minutes from May 14, 2019. 

Trustee Knutson requested the removal of Consent Agenda Kid’s Pasta Project Special Event 

Permit. Corrections noted for draft April 23
rd

 minutes. 

 

 Consent Agenda – Work Session and Regular Minutes April 23, 2019 

 Consent Agenda – Regular Minutes May 14, 2019 

 Paonia Liquors, LLC - License Renewal 

 

Motion made by Trustee Bachran, Seconded by Trustee Hart to approve consent agenda as 

amended. Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran, Trustee Bear, Trustee 

Budinger, Trustee Hart, Trustee Knutson. 

9



 

  

MAY 28, 2019 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 2 

 

  

Removed Consent Agenda Item - Special Event Permit - Kids Pasta Project - Edesia Kitchen 

Discussion ensued regarding the liquor license approval time, ending at 10pm. Edesia variance 

requires events stop service at 9pm. The liquor license must include the time for clean-up 

following the event.  Clerk Ferguson will remind the event holder of the 9pm ending 

requirement. 

 

Motion by Trustee Bear seconded by Trustee Knutson to approve Kids Pasta Project Special 

Event Permit at Edesia Kitchen. Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran, Trustee 

Bear, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Hart, Trustee Knutson. 

Mayor’s Report 
 

Proclamation - Colorado Bike Month 

 Mayor Stewart read the Colorado Bike Month proclamation for the record. 

 

Proclamation – Rural Philanthropy Days 

 Mayor Stewart read the Rural Philanthropy Days proclamation for the record declaring 

June 12-14, 2019 as Rural Philanthropy Days. 

 

Staff Reports 
 

Administrator’s Report 

 In the absence of Administrator Knight Clerk Ferguson provided information regarding 

upcoming events and projects to the Board of Trustees. 

 

Public Works Report 

 Spring Clean-up completed today. Most successful event. 

Spilling approximately 700,000 gallons at 1mg plant. 

Spilling approximately 200,000 gallons at 2mg plant. 

Parks preparation continues. Difficult to mow in rainy weather. 

 

Trustee Bear noted the parks look unkempt. 

  

Police Department Report 

 

 Last day of school was May 24th. 

Received only positive feedback regarding the SRO program. 

The Paonia community Back the Badge presentation is set for June 19th. 

Up over 100 incidents from this time last year. 

Officer Vassel beginning bike training soon. 

 

Town Treasurer Report 

 

 Reviewed payroll and disbursements. 

10



 

  

MAY 28, 2019 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 3 

 

Reviewed April fund balances. 

Audit activity continues. 

Continuing to investigate refinancing of existing USDA loan, including a request for 

additional funds for Stahl, Highway 133, and Price Road sewer line extension. Plan to 

bring before the Board at a future meeting. 

  

Disbursements 
 

 Motion to approve disbursements as presented. 

Motion made by Trustee Budinger, Seconded by Trustee Hart. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran, Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, 

Trustee Hart, Trustee Knutson. 

 

Unfinished Business 
 Ordinance 2019-04 Municipal Code Modification and Addition to Chapter 6, Article 1. – 

Alcoholic Beverage Licenses; an Ordinance Permitting Alcohol Beverage Tastings 

 

 Mayor Stewart read the title and opening statement for Ordinance 2019-04 for the 

record. This is the second reading of the ordinance.  

 

Motion to approve the second reading of 2019-04, Municipal Code Modification and 

Addition to Chapter 6, Article 1. – Alcoholic Beverage Licenses; an Ordinance 

Permitting Alcohol Beverage Tastings. 

Motion made by Trustee Bear, Seconded by Trustee Hart. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran, Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, 

Trustee Hart, Trustee Knutson 

 

Colorado Code Consulting Contract – Collaborative Update of Building Code 

 Mayor Stewart noted concern with the proposed contract fee sections and requested 

clarification for paragraph 6 of the contract.  

 

Motion made to table the contract to the next meeting. 

Motion made by Trustee Hart, Seconded by Trustee Bachran. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran, Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, 

Trustee Hart, Trustee Knutson. 

 

 North Fork Ambulance District - Lease 

 Trustee Knutson recused himself from discussion and voting on this item, noting conflict 

of interest having worked as a consultant for the ambulance district. 

 

Mayor Stewart provided an overview of the existing lease agreement and history of the 

NFAA location.  Trustee Bear questioned the lease length of twenty (20) years and the 

rental amount. 

11



 

  

MAY 28, 2019 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 4 

 

Attorney Nerlin disclosed that J. David Reed PC serves as attorney for the NFAA but has 

made it clear that in respect to this agreement the firm represents the Town.  

A perpetual lease is in place and under negotiation with Hotchkiss as well. 

 

Treasurer King noted 2 observations – the approval of a 5.25 mill levy and some 

consideration for managing the agreement and relationship with new NFAA should be 

considered.  

 

Discussion ensued regarding lease length and fee. 

 

Michelle Pattison - Second Street - asked if the low rent amount would be considered an 

in-kind contribution. 

 

Bill Brunner - Second Street - Believes as a citizen it is not fair to give them free rent 

after the vote to increase their budget.  

 

Motion to amend leases length to ten (10) years and five (5) year renewal periods after. 

Motion made by Trustee Bear, Seconded by Trustee Hart.  

Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran, Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, 

Trustee Hart. 

 

Main amended motion carried. Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran, 

Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Hart. 

 

New Business 
 

 Colorado Detours, LLC – Commercial Use of Public Property 

 Jo Ann Jarreau was present on behalf of Colorado Detours, LLC.  Ms. Jarreau presented 

the materials included in the packet requesting use of the Twin Lakes property to load 

and unload vehicles and carriages for guided tours. 

 

Ms. Jarreau noted the benefits to the Town and commercial businesses in Paonia and 

added concern with the costs for use of the property, adding that they believe the costs 

would be prohibitive to the start-up business. 

 

Discussion ensued regarding a license agreement, the maintenance and upkeep of the 

property, the tour route, and fees associated. 

 

Motion to approve a fee of $10 a day to be reviewed at 60 days following commencement 

of tours.  

Motion made by Trustee Knutson, Seconded by Trustee Hart. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran, Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, 

Trustee Hart, Trustee Knutson. 

 

12



 

  

MAY 28, 2019 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 5 

 

Motion to schedule follow-up and review of the license agreement at next regular 

meeting and to approve events until next Board meeting at $10 per day. 

Motion made by Trustee Bookout, seconded by Trustee Hart. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran, Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, 

Trustee Hart, Trustee Knutson. 

 

A five (5) minute recess was called. 

 

Water Incident After Action Report - Review and Acceptance 

 Mayor Stewart noted the receipt of the after-action report and the need to set a special 

meeting for public discussion for water related issues.  

 

Discussion ensued regarding setting the special meeting for public discussion.  

 

Motion to set special meeting for Monday, June 24, 2019 at 6pm.  

Motion made by Trustee Bear, Seconded by Trustee Budinger.  

Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran, Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, 

Trustee Hart, Trustee Knutson. 

 

Bill Brunner - suggested the Town invite WestWater Engineering to the after-action 

meeting.  

 

 Business Licensing - Discussion 

 Trustee Knutson provided an overview of the reasons for the need for a business license 

or tracking mechanism for a nominal business license/registration and fee.  

 

Discussion ensued regarding the benefits and drawbacks of business licensing from the 

commercial user and Town staff side. 

 

Treasurer King recommended the Board seriously consider implementing business 

licensing.   

 

Michelle Pattison – Second Street - questioned how a new requirement at the Town level 

would differ from the State sales tax license and suggested businesses be incentivized by 

registering and being included on the Town website. 

 

Mary DiFranco – Seventh Street - believes regulations can be cumbersome and stated she 

would be in support if the process was considerate of time to fill out paperwork. 

 

Kathy Briggs - concerned regulations could become extensive. 

 

Monica Foguth - suggested a fee scale based upon in-town residents and out-of-town 

residents.  

 

Discussion ensued regarding process to put in to effect resolution vs. ordinance. 

 

13



 

  

MAY 28, 2019 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 6 

 

Trustee Hart suggested the Town be in front of the issue and suggests the Town address it 

now and move forward.  

 

Motion to direct Town Attorney to prepare a draft ordinance for business licensing for 

Town of Paonia.  

Motion made by Trustee Hart, Seconded by Trustee Budinger. 

 

Trustee Knutson - suggested the Board have an additional meeting for discussion and 

ideas prior to ordinance drafting. 

 

Motion to amend main motion by Trustee Knutson, Seconded by Trustee Bachran. 

Motion to continue discussion at next meeting.  

Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran, Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, 

Trustee Hart, Trustee Knutson. 

  

 Short-Term Rental – (Airbnb, VRBO) – Discussion 

 

 Trustee Hart provided an overview of the need for a discussion regarding short-term 

rentals in Town. Trustee Knutson added a list of benefits and issues for homeowners and 

brick and mortar businesses. 

 

The Governmental Affairs Committee is looking for Board direction. 

 

Discussion ensued regarding short-term rental issues and lack of long-term rentals. 

 

Ann Marie Gambino - Second Street – Realtor – stated taxes are being paid through the 

rental websites.  In Durango they are licensed and only so many are available.  

 

Town does not have a lodging tax but VRBO’s are required to have and pay a sales tax. 

 

Patrick McCarney - noted that AirBnB collects sales tax as do other companies, but 

renter to owner transactions and are harder to track. Suggested coming up with a balance. 

 

Kathy Briggs noted it is easier to keep up maintenance on a short-term rental vs. a long-

term rental and that short-term rentals attract tourists.  

 

Monica Foguth - noted long-term rentals are difficult and there are demands, but thinks it 

is important to create space for those who work hard and want to live here as well. There 

needs to be a balance. 

 

Mary DiFranco - stated it was a surprise to hear there is a long-term rental shortage when 

she had a property sit open because of a no pet requirement. 

 

JoAnn Jarreau - Orchard Avenue - encouraged the Board to look at the master plan to 

discuss community planning in general. 

14



 

  

MAY 28, 2019 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 7 

 

Current Town Code restricts rooming houses to R-2 by special review and no commercial 

use in residential zones. 

 

Trustee Hart stated there are multiple different viewpoints and believes the Board and 

community could find a balance.  

  

Committee Reports 
 

 Finance & Personnel 

 None. 

 

 Public Works/Utilities/Facilities 

 Met May 20
th

 to discuss: 

Lining of 2mg tank. 

Park tree trimming. 

Meter installation. 

Road annexations. 

Alternative ways to deal with 2nd and Grand drainage issues near Ollies ice cream. 

Reviewing trees along sidewalks. 

Miner Wall Plaza dedication re-scheduled to July 4th. 

 

 Governmental Affairs/Public Safety 

 None. 

 

 Space to Create 

 Moving forward with master plan. 

 

Tree Board 

None. 

  

Adjournment 
 Motion made by Trustee Hart, Seconded by Trustee Bachran. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran, Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, 

Trustee Hart, Trustee Knutson. 

 

Meeting adjourned at 9:15pm 
  

 

 

_______________________________  ______________________________ 

J. Corinne Ferguson, Town Clerk              Charles Stewart, Mayor  

15



 

  

JUNE 11, 2019 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 1 

 

Minutes 

Regular Town Board Meeting 

Town of Paonia, Colorado 

June 11, 2019 

  

 

RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 

 

Roll Call 
 

 PRESENT 

Mayor Charles Stewart 

Trustee Mary Bachran 

Trustee William Bear 

Trustee Karen Budinger 

Trustee Dave Knutson 

 

ABSENT 

Mayor Pro-Tem Chelsea Bookout 

Trustee Samira Hart 

 

Approval of Agenda 
 

 Motion to approve agenda as presented. 

Motion made by Trustee Bear, Seconded by Trustee Bachran. 

Voting Yea: Trustee Bachran, Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Knutson. 

 

Announcements 
 

 Trustee Bachran announced being chosen, along with Elaine Brett - to attend the National 

Endowment of the Arts Institute for creative place-making. Will be attending in 

Washington D.C. 

 

Recognition of Visitors & Guests 
 Miner's Plaza Memorial Wall Update 

 Dave Bradford - committee member for the Miners Plaza Memorial Wall presented an 

update to the Board. The dedication originally planned for Memorial Day has been 

rescheduled for the Cherry Days events, July 4th, tentatively at 11:15am, following the 

parade.  An update regarding the engraving, process, tracking and placement of brick 

faces, and dedication was given.  

 

 Deborah Spiegel - Orchard Avenue - asking the Board to re-visit the new fence 

ordinance, specifically the difference between a solid fence and open/chain-link fence. 

Pamela Jackson concurred with the request and showed an image of the iron fence she 

wants at her home.  

 

16



 

  

JUNE 11, 2019 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 2 

 

Motion to place fence ordinance discussion on the next agenda. 

Motion made by Trustee Knutson, Seconded by Trustee Bachran.  

Voting Yea: Trustee Bachran, Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Knutson. 

 

Consent Agenda 
 Motion to approve consent agenda. 

      Motion made by Trustee Bear, Seconded by Trustee Budinger. 

Voting Yea: Trustee Bachran, Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Knutson. 

 

Bob Bushta – informed the Board of the schedule change for Cherry  

Days, noting that Down Town Days are the day after the 4th of July instead of the day 

before. 

Mayor’s Report 
 Requested direction from the Board regarding setting a work session for short-term 

rentals discussion.  

Motion made to schedule a work session for 5pm at the first regular Board meeting in 

July to discuss short-term rentals.   

Motion made by Trustee Knutson, Seconded by Trustee Bachran. 

Voting Yea: Trustee Bachran, Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Knutson 

 

Staff Reports 
 Administrator’s Report 

 Received completed annexation petition that will be before the Board in July due to 

notice requirements.  

Provided information regarding the current stand pipe card reader and the deficit between 

expenses and revenues. The item will be on the agenda soon.   

 

Motion made to refer the stand pipe card reader to Public Works Committee to review 

and bring recommendations back to the Board. 

Motion made by Trustee Bachran, Seconded by Trustee Knutson. 

Voting Yea: Trustee Bachran, Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Knutson. 

 

Motion made to direct Public Works Director Loberg and Administrator Knight to 

research and bring ideas to the next committee meeting. 

Motion made by Trustee Bear, Seconded by Trustee Knutson. 

Voting Yea: Trustee Bachran, Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Knutson. 

 

Public Works Report 

 Street Cleaning underway. 

Striping and crosswalks to be completed before July 4th. 

Replacement of street signs beginning. 

Tree trimming in right-of-way continues. 

Spilling 430,000 a day at 1mg. 

Spilling 160,000 a day at 2mg. 

17



 

  

JUNE 11, 2019 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 3 

 

Production is down due to consumer conservancy. 

Both storage tanks are full. 

  

Police Department Report 

 Back the Badge June community meeting is the 19th for community presentation.  

92 incidents in two-weeks. 

Drone purchase for marijuana enforcement finalized this week. 

 

Town Treasurer Report 

 Disbursements reviewed. 

Payroll reviewed. 

Audit continues and is going well. 

Working on information regarding Stahl and Price Road Sewer project. 

Disbursements 
 

 Motion to approve disbursements as presented. 

 Motion made by Trustee Budinger, Seconded by Trustee Knutson. 

Voting Yea: Trustee Bachran, Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Knutson. 

 

Unfinished Business 
 

 Colorado Detours, LLC – Commercial Use of Public Property 

 Mayor Stewart provided a brief update regarding the request from Colorado Detours, 

LLC to use the Twin Lakes property for a staging area for carriage tours. A licensing 

agreement was presented. The Sixty (60) day limit is to allow the LLC and the Town an 

opportunity to assess income, impact and fees. 

 

Motion made to approve the agreement as presented. 

Motion made by Trustee Bear, Seconded by Trustee Knutson. 

Voting Yea: Trustee Bachran, Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Knutson. 

 

 Colorado Code Consulting Contract – Collaborative Update of Building Code 

 Mayor Stewart provided a brief history of the proposed agreement with Colorado Code 

Consulting. 

 

Discussion ensued regarding cost-sharing. 

 

Motion to approve Colorado Code Consulting contract as presented. 

Motion made by Trustee Bachran, Seconded by Trustee Budinger. 

 

Motion to amend main motion, making the contract contingent upon cost sharing with 

Three (3) other jurisdictions.  

Motion made by Trustee Knutson, Seconded by Trustee Knutson Budinger. 

Voting Yea: Trustee Bachran, Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Knutson. 

18



 

  

JUNE 11, 2019 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 4 

 

Main amended motion carried.  

 

 Business Licensing – Continued Discussion 

 Mayor Stewart updated the Board regarding the sample ordinances provided by Attorney 

Nerlin.  Administrator Knight stated he would be prepared to report at the next meeting 

and provided a list of benefits and needs regarding licensing to the Town and community. 

 

Discussion ensued regarding different types of business registering, remaining business 

friendly, keeping the process simple, costs associated with the applications as well as use 

of excess funds. 

 

Deborah Spiegel - Oak Avenue - questioned which businesses would be required to be 

licensed, specifically regarding multiple office buildings and home occupations. 

 

Michelle Pattison - 2nd Street - agreed with voluntary registration and incentives for 

registering. 

 

Thomas Markle - 2nd Street - questioned if the Town staff have the time to give to 

complete the process. Questions the benefit. And believes it is unfair to require a business 

that is out-of-town but receives mail in Town to register.  

 

Clerk Ferguson stated the time is available to make the program work and listed several 

reasons why the staff believes it is an important function of government. 

 

Motion to direct Administrator Knight and Attorney Nerlin to draft an ordinance for 

business registrations and bring to the Board for review.   

Motion made by Trustee Bachran, Seconded by Trustee Knutson. 

Voting Yea: Trustee Bachran, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Knutson. 

Voting Nay: Trustee Bear. 

New Business 
 Special Review – Ruppert/Hunter – Home Occupation Application 

 Mayor Stewart recused himself from chairing the Board for the special review - due to 

conflict of interest, as a direct neighbor.  Trustee Bear, as member of Planning 

Commission, is willing to chair in a temporary fashion. 

 

Motion made to appoint Trustee Bear as chair for the special hearing.  

Motion made by Trustee Knutson, Seconded by Trustee Budinger. 

Trustee Bachran, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Knutson. 

 

Trustee Bear assumed the chair for the special hearing. 

 

Hearing opened at 7:47pm. 

Jeff Ruppert provided information regarding the civil structural engineering home-based 

business run out of at 337 Main Avenue. 

 

19



 

  

JUNE 11, 2019 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 5 

 

Public Questions: None. 

Board Questions: None. 

 

Chairman Bear noted one neighbor noted concern with potential parking issues at the 

planning commission meeting. The business owners have no expectation for more than 

Two (2) clients and one (1) employee. 

 

Hearing closed at 7:49pm 

 

Motion made to approve the home occupation request for 337 Main Avenue. 

Motion made by Trustee Budinger, Seconded by Trustee Knutson. 

Voting Yea: Trustee Bachran, Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Knutson. 

  

 Green Belt Addition - Acceptance of Annexation Petition 

 Mayor Stewart provided information regarding the process of accepting of petition and 

annexation resolution. 

 Motion made to accept the Greenbelt Annexation Petition as presented. 

Motion made by Trustee Budinger, Seconded by Trustee Bear. 

Voting Yea: Trustee Bachran, Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger. 

Voting Nay: Trustee Knutson. 

 

 Resolution 2019-10 Initiating Annexation Proceedings 

 Motion made to adopt Resolution 2019-10, initiating annexation proceedings for 

Greenbelt Addition. 

 Motion made by Trustee Bear, Seconded by Trustee Bachran. 

Voting Yea: Trustee Bachran, Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger. 

Voting Nay: Trustee Knutson. 

 

 Home Occupation Application Process - Discussion 

 Mayor Stewart explained why he believes the home occupation process should be 

revised, whether administrative, or eliminating the planning commission review and 

recommendation.  

 

Administrator Knight added he believes the process is too cumbersome but does believe 

there is a need for public notice. Administrator Knight does not recommend a strictly 

administrative review, and suggested a 30-day review, notice mailing, and Board of 

Trustee review for final approval.  

 

Trustee Knutson stated he doesn't agree to take planning out of the process.  

 

Motion made to direct Administrator Knight and Attorney Nerlin to bring a draft 

ordinance amendment to the Board for review. 

Motion made by Trustee Bear, Seconded by Trustee Knutson. 

Voting Yea: Trustee Bachran, Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Knutson. 

 

  

20



 

  

JUNE 11, 2019 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 6 

 

Committee Reports 
 Finance & Personnel 

 None. 

 

 Public Works/Utilities/Facilities 

 None. 

 

 Governmental Affairs/Public Safety 

 None. 

 

 Space to Create 

 Will be presenting at Rural Philanthropy Days. 

Gates Foundation grant given to Arts Space for pre-development costs.  

 

 Tree Board 

 None. 

Adjournment 
 

Motion made to adjourn. 

Motion made by Trustee Knutson, Seconded by Trustee Bachran. 

Voting Yea: Trustee Bachran, Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Knutson. 

Meeting adjourned at 8:10pm. 

 
  

 

 

_______________________________  ______________________________ 

J. Corinne Ferguson, Town Clerk               Charles Stewart, Mayor  

21



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

June 5, 2019 
 

 

Mayor’s Report 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

22



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

May 23, 2019 
 

 

Administrator’s Report 

Summary:   

 

 

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

23



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

May 23, 2019 
 

 

Public Works Report 

Summary:   

 

 

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

24



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

June 5, 2019 
 

 

Police Report 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

25



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

June 5, 2019 
 

 

Treasurer’s Report 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

June 5, 2019 
 

 

Disbursements 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

40



41



42



43



44



45



46



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

June 24, 2019 
 

 

US House Subcommittee on Energy & Minerals Leasing Reform 

Legislation 

Summary:   

Peter Kolbenschlag requested discussion. 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

47



TOWN OF PAONIA REQUEST TO 

BE PLACED ON AGENDA PO Box 460 

Paonia, CO 81428 970/527-4101 

townofpaonia@tds.net  

Here are things you need to know:  

▪ You must contact the Town Clerk prior to coming to Council. Quite often the issue can be resolved by 

staff action.  

▪ No charges or complaints against individual employees should be made. Such charges or complaints 

should be sent to the employee’s Department Head in writing with your signature.  

▪ Remarks that discriminate against anyone or adversely reflect upon the race, color, ancestry, religious 

creed, national origin, political affiliation, disability, sex, or marital status of any person are out of order 

and may end the speaker’s privilege to address the Council.  

▪ Defamatory, abusive remarks or profanity are out of order and will not be tolerated.  

Please complete the following information and return this form no later than the Wednesday prior to the Board 

meeting to the above address or bring it to the Town Hall at 214 Grand Avenue. Office hours are Monday 

through Friday, 8:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. Regular Board meetings are scheduled for the second and fourth 

Tuesdays of each month.  

Name of person making presentation: _Pete Kolbenschlag_  

Organization, if speaking on behalf of a group:___self__  

Is this a request for Board action? Yes   

Please provide a summary of your comments:  

__Hello, I would like the board to consider supporting federal oil and gas leasing reform 

legislation, which just received its first hearing in committee on June 20.  I am testifying at this 

hearing. The bill, HR 3225 makes numerous common-sense reforms, including mandating a 

minimum of 90 days for comment on oil and gas leasing proposals, shortening the length of 

lease terms, requiring better up-front planning, and increasing transparency. I have attached 

my written testimony and a letter from VOGA as an example. A similar letter from the Town of 

Paonia can be submitted as part of this committee’s official record prior to June 30. 

__________________________________________________________________________  

What staff member have you spoken to about this? Please summarize your discussion:  

_________I asked Ken Knight about this before I came to DC, but had not provided enough 

notice so he asked me to resubmit, and Corrine sent me this application. 

48



___________________________________________________________________  

____________________________________________________________________________  

Contact information:  

Name: __Pete Kolbenschlag__ Mailing Address: 229 HWY 

133/Paonia 81428 

E-mail: _pete@mountainweststrategies.com  Daytime 

Phone: __970-261-0678 ____  

49



Oil and Gas Leasing Reforms 
 
Sec. 401 – Leasing Process – Amends Section 17 of the Mineral Leasing Act to improve the                
onshore oil and gas leasing system and assure receipt of fair market value for lands leased for                 
oil and gas. The amendments include:  
 
� Requirements for sealed bids rather than oral auctions of leases; 
� A maximum of 3 lease sales per year per state; 
� A requirement that no field office can hold more than one lease sale per year; 
� The elimination of non-competitive leasing;  
� Authority for the Secretary to evaluate the resource potential of lease tracts and rejects              

bids that are below the estimated fair market value based on that potential;  
� Shortening the primary lease term to 5 years; 
� Requiring leaseholders to have the demonstrated capability to explore and produce oil            

and gas, in order to discourage speculation; and 
� Adding terms to all leases to preserve the Government’s flexibility to control or prohibit              

activities that pose serious and unacceptable impacts to other values. 
 
Sec. 402 – Transparency & Landowner Protections – Requires parties to disclose their identity              
when nominating and bidding on federal minerals, and requires the Secretary to notify surface              
land owners and holders of commercial use permits when oil and gas leases are offered on                
lands which would affect their property or permits. Also requires a surface use agreement              
between the operator and the surface landowner (if not the federal government), and provides              
additional safeguards for private surface owners overlying federal minerals. Also requires public            
notice and comment whenever lease stipulations are proposed to be waived or subject to an               
exception or modification. 
 
Sec. 403 – Lease Stipulations – Requires a revision of the DOI-USDA MOU developed under               
Section 363 of EPACT to allow for more protective stipulations.  
 
Sec. 404 – Master Leasing Plans – Requires the Secretary to develop Master Leasing Plans               
(MLPs) for any area where the four criteria under BLM Instructional Memorandum (IM) No.              
2010-117 are met: 
 
� A substantial portion of the area to be analyzed in the MLP is not currently leased; 
� There is a majority Federal mineral interest; 
� The oil and gas industry has expressed a specific interest in leasing, and there is a                

moderate or high potential for oil and gas confirmed by the discovery of oil and gas in                 
the general area; and 

� Additional analysis or information is needed to address likely resource or cumulative            
impacts if oil and gas development were to occur where there are. 

 
Also provides general authority for MLPs in other areas, and requires the Secretary to respond               
to petitions requesting the development on new MLPs.  

50



 
Sec. 405 – Parcel Review – Codifies the leasing reforms established in BLM IM 2010-117, such                
as: 
 
� Interdisciplinary review of potential parcels;  
� Site visits; 
� Stipulation consistency; 
� 90-day public notice of lease sales; and 
� Enhanced NEPA requirements.  

 
Sec. 406 – Acreage Limitation – Tightens the per-state oil and gas leasing acreage limitation by               
eliminating the language added by Section 352 of EPACT that exempts producing and unitized              
or communitized leases from counting against that limitation.  
 
Sec. 407 – Land Management – Requires BLM and USFS to continue to manage lands under                
lease for multiple-use until a company begins operations on the lease.  
 
Sec. 408 – Oil Shale – Prohibits commercial oil shale leasing until technical and economic              
feasibility is established through the existing R&D program.  
 
Sec. 427 – Transparency in Lease Management – Requires the Secretary to publish the identity               
of each oil and gas lease holder and operator on a public website, as well as all lease transfers                   
and lease suspensions. Also requires all previous lessees and operators to be identified.   
 
Sec. 428 – Lease Cancellation for Improper Issuance – Clarifies that DOI can cancel leases               
under the MLA if those leases have been improperly issued. 

New Section – Require Require BLM to charge a cost-recovery fee to each person/entity that 
submits an oil and gas expression of interest. The fee would be equal to the amount that BLM 
determines is necessary to cover the expenses associated with processing and reviewing the 
EOI. 

 
 

51



DATE: June 19, 2019

Rep. Alan Lowenthal, Chair
Rep. Paul Gosar, Ranking Member
House Subcommittee on Energy and Minerals
1324 Longworth House Office Building
Washington, DC 20515

Reps Lowanthal and Gosar:

On behalf of Valley Organic Growers Association we are writing to offer our support for the Restoring 
Community Input and Public Protections in Oil and Gas Leasing Act of 2019, HR 3225.
 
Valley Organic Growers Association is a membership based non profit organization focused on promoting 
sustainable agriculture in Western Colorado. Founded in 1992, we have over 120 members that produce 
vegetables, fruit, wine, meat, dairy products, eggs, flowers, wool, and value added products such as jam, 
prepared meals, and canned foods. We depend on the clean water that runs through the North Fork of the 
Gunnison River in order to irrigate our organic farms and provide water to our livestock. As an organiza-
tion we focus on agricultural education, farm tours, promoting our members, and protecting our beautiful 
agricultural land so that our farmers can continue to thrive for many generations. 

Oil and gas leasing and development carries with it many potential impacts that bring risks to our local 
farmers, ranchers, orchardists, vintners, and agricultural related businesses, including loss of public land 
access, potential for industrial development that directly displaces and disrupts other uses and current 
economic activity including hunting, recreation, livestock grazing, and secure wildlife habitat.
 
In order to properly and fully consider these things, adequate time is necessary to properly consider pro-
posed oil and gas leases, to allow our members time to offer input and information, and to provide mean-
ingful comment to the relevant land management agencies. This is why we support HR 3225.
 
In particular we support provisions for greater time for public and stakeholder input, shorter lease terms 
to ensure the agency is always using the best, most current information, and the requirement that other 
resources be given proper consideration when deciding which of our public lands are suitable for this 
activity and which are best managed for the many other public and environmental benefits they offer.
 
Our public lands are very important to Valley Organic Growers Association and our farmers and we both 
appreciate and expect the opportunity to participate fully in their management. HR 3225 is important 
legislation that would better ensure that farmers, ranchers, community members and agricultural orga-
nizations such as VOGA are able to provide that input and to better ensure the needs of our growers and 
food producers are being met.
 
Thank you for your consideration, and we urge that this subcommittee support and  mark up this legisla-
tion, and to support its passage into law.
 52



Respectfully,

Emily Hartnett
Board President, Valley Organic Growers Association
PO Box 614, Hotchkiss, CO 81419
vogaco@gmail.com

53



Written testimony, Pete Kolbenschlag H.R. 3225 
Restoring Community Input and Public Protections in Oil and Gas Leasing Act of 2019  

 
Introduction 

My name is Pete Kolbenschlag, and I come from Colorado’s North Fork Valley in Delta 

County. We’ve always been an orchard and farming town, from when the first white 

settlers arrived -- and even before then, it was an agricultural area for the Ute. The first 

settlers brought the first orchard trees into the valley in 1881, and it's been known as a 

source of high-quality fruit ever since. Fifteen years after those settlers arrived, North 

Fork fruit was already winning ribbons at the World’s Fair back east. The ditch I live on 

has water rights dating to 1893, and, as anyone who knows the West knows, those 

rights are a precious thing. The Valley’s heritage is in agriculture, and its oldest 

enterprise was bringing irrigation water to it.  

 

We have also been a coal mining community since the early days. At first just farmers’ 

mines, shallow adits for heating fuel and for the orchards, to keep the spring frosts at 

bay. Around the beginning of the 20th Century, coal companies moved in. So we have a 

history of not only feeding America but helping to power it, too. People here are 

rightfully proud of this heritage. 

 

The North Fork is the kind of community that has a real sense of, and pride in, place. 

People here identify with the landscape, the community, and our past. But we are 

looking to the future as well. We have learned over the past 120 years that an 

extractive-based economy is not the best way to succeed over time. Being yoked to a 

boom and bust development regime is a liability.  

 

So, I am honored to speak here today to provide my input on this important 

comprehensive energy reform legislation, and to bring insight from my little community 

of a few thousand people in rural Colorado. I am speaking on my own behalf, but I'm 

carrying the input from many residents and organizations in the North Fork. In drafting 

these comments, I spoke with board members of ditch companies, local government 

officials, farm associations, small business owners, conservation groups and citizens.  

 
 54



Written testimony, Pete Kolbenschlag: H.R. 3225 

We are a well-organized valley, and we know how to advocate for our interests. But, too 

often, it is difficult to advance our vision for the future when the system is rigged to favor 

industry interests. In order to succeed, we need to have our voices heard, and we need 

the opportunity to fully engage on land use decisions that affect our lives, our heritage, 

and our livelihoods -- including and especially oil and gas leasing.  

 

That’s why I am here today to support the Restoring Community Input and Public 

Protections in Oil and Gas Leasing Act -- H.R. 3225 -- which would ensure better 

transparency and balance in the federal oil and gas leasing program. This would benefit 

communities like mine. 

 

About the North Fork Valley  

The watershed of the North Fork of the Gunnison River, for which the valley is named, 

along with its adjacent neighbor the Smith Fork, comprise a wonderful mix of private, 

state, and public lands. Federal agencies include the National Park Service, Bureau of 

Land Management, and Bureau of Reclamation, and the US Forest Service -- all of 

which all manage lands or facilities within the immediate vicinity. The area includes a 

national park, a national recreation area, a BLM national conservation area, state 

wildlife areas and two state parks. It's an important landscape all around - for farming 

and ranching, for recreation and tourism, and for wildlife. Hunting lands here are some 

of the state’s most prized units.  

 

The management decisions on public lands are critically important to the economies 

and livelihoods of those that live in the valley that they surround.  Where and how 

mineral leasing and development happens has outsized impacts on our clean air and 

water, on our wildlife and -- ultimately -- on the growing economies like outdoor 

recreation, tourism, and an evolving agricultural industry that are the future of our valley.  

 

2 55



Written testimony, Pete Kolbenschlag: H.R. 3225 

This vital link between the health of the valley and public lands management is not new. 

In a 1904 report regarding the Gunnison Forest Reserve, federal officials wrote:  
 

”The value of the forest as a protection cover is clearly shown by the experience 

of the people of the North Fork Valley. Several years ago the ditches which drew 

their supply from the North Fork became very short in their supply. The fruit 

growers, on investigating, found that the herders who were running large bands 

of sheep on the watershed of the river were setting a great many fires that 

destroyed the forest cover… This expensive object lesson thoroughly convinced 

the farmers and fruit growers of the importance of forest cover to prolong stream 

flow and it seems unnecessary to give further evidence in this report.”  1

 

The protection of our public lands - and their close bond with the health of our 

watersheds - has been a top concern since the founding of our small communities.  

 

The North Fork’s largest agricultural association--the Valley Organic Growers 

Association--supports H.R. 3225. VOGA represents over 100 family farms and livestock 

ranches. Its membership runs from multi-generational to young farmers just starting out. 

VOGA support these reforms as a way for the government to provide an even-handed 

process. H.R. 3225 is respectful of ranchers’ and farmers’ long days and busy 

schedules, allowing for meaningful engagement on local public lands and their water 

supplies, just as their predecessors have done for over 100 years.  

 

H.R. 3225 reforms are also important for protecting our emerging economies, including 

tourism and agritourism, for which the North Fork is renowned. Called “Colorado’s Farm 

to Table Capital," the valley includes the state’s highest concentration of organic farms.  

 

1 U.S. Department of Agriculture: Bureau of Forestry, “The Proposed Gunnison Forest Reserves Report,” 1904. 
Online at www.fs.usda.gov/Internet/FSE_DOCUMENTS/stelprdb5378337.pdf  
 

3 56



Written testimony, Pete Kolbenschlag: H.R. 3225 

The North Fork Valley is also one of only two federally-designated wine grape growing 

regions, or American Viticultural Areas, in the state. The West Elk AVA is comprised of 

more than one dozen wineries and includes the highest wine grape arbors (and 

wineries) in North America, at nearly 8,000 feet.  Wineries, and the markets and 2

agritourism farms worry that the bucolic charm that brings tourists and business, along 

with the quality of the water that feeds arbors and farms, could be impacted by 

expanding oil and gas development in the watersheds above and public lands 

surrounding them. These businesses certainly expect a federal government that actively 

seeks out and considers their input prior to making decisions that could so greatly 

impact them, which is why the West Elk AVA is also a supporter of H.R. 3225.  

 

Tourism is not limited to the wineries and farm-markets, but includes a growing creative 

industry attracted to quality-of-life, the vibrant rural community, and the stunning beauty 

of the area’s public lands. The North Fork is a state-designated Colorado Creative 

District. The highway that links it with the rest of the state, known as the West Elk 

Scenic Loop and a state scenic byway, is designated as Colorado’s Creative Corridor.   3

 

Many tourist-oriented businesses are concerned that further industrialization of the 

public lands, and more heavy industrial traffic on the roads will be a detriment to their 

livelihoods. They, too, expect a federal process that ensures adequate time to review 

documents, fully consider proposals, and to engage in a fair and even-handed process.  

  

Tourism in Colorado is also driven by proximity to outstanding outdoor recreation, and 

here the public lands are not only the backdrop and foreground to our lives and 

businesses, making wineries, scenic drives, and the creative industry here all possible -- 

but are themselves both prized and productive in terms of supporting a multi-million 

dollar recreation economy.  

2 Forbes, “Wine in Colorado: Where Cool Climate Grapes are the New Hot,” May 25, 2016. Online at 
www.forbes.com/sites/cathyhuyghe/2016/05/25/where-cool-climate-grapes-are-the-new-hot-wine-in-colorado-believe-
it/#25fb45045af9  
3 Colorado Field Guide, “Colorado Creative Corridor.” At www.colorado.com/fieldguide/colorado-creative-corridor  

4 57



Written testimony, Pete Kolbenschlag: H.R. 3225 

One recent study found that outdoor recreation in Colorado's Third Congressional 

District, where I live, brings in over $2 billion dollars every year to local coffers.  The 4

hunting units on the public lands surrounding the valley are among the most 

sought-after in Colorado -- and provide the type of remote, backcountry experience that 

most hunters can only dream about, and that many are willing to pay top dollar for - 

bringing robust business to local outfitters, main street businesses, and everyone 

between. Hunters and guides and all who care about recreation on public lands should 

be afforded a meaningful opportunity to field check and otherwise consider potential 

impacts to the public lands they rely on and utilize, before they are considered for 

opening to industrial development.  

 

More Transparency, More Input 

The National Environmental Policy Act at its core is a “transparency statute.” It is meant, 

in part, to ensure that certain federal decisions are made with public oversight at every 

step. This is required both as a fundamental check on agency plans from the actual seat 

of government--We, the People, and it is meant to provide real-world input on the 

analysis that undergirds decisions.  

 

Too often, however, the BLM and US Forest Service have short-circuited this process in 

ways that undermine the intent and spirit of the law.  Poorly communicated planning 

processes with inadequate and abbreviated opportunities for public comment result in 

management that doesn’t match with public needs nor meaningfully reflect public  input.  
 

I encourage this committee to mark up this legislation, which would allow more public 

oversight, as a matter of good and even-handed government, and because it can 

provide useful information to help keep poorly-planned proposals from ending up in 

costly litigation.  

4 Outdoor Industry Association, “Outdoor Recreation Thriving in Colorado’s 3rd Congressional District with $2.19 
Billion in Annual Resident Spending,” April 27, 2018. Online at 
https://outdoorindustry.org/press-release/outdoor-recreation-thriving-colorados-3rd-congressional-district-2-19-billion-
annual-resident-spending/  

5 58



Written testimony, Pete Kolbenschlag: H.R. 3225 

More robust work up front, better transparency around the leasing process, an end to 

noncompetitive leasing, and shorter lease terms, can all help keep parcels from going to 

sale that never belong there in the first place. And let’s be clear, although we may hear 

today how careful the agency is in what it does, including when deciding which lands to 

lease or not, that is not how it happens, in too many cases, on-the-ground. 

 

There are lots of examples of public lands that the BLM put up for leasing, and then had 

to withdraw, defer, or suspend due to poor underlying or project-level analysis, and 

ignoring local community input. It’s not a short list. Some reversals have happened 

before the lands are leased - which is preferable - and some of the reversals happen 

only after litigation such as in the Roan Plateau and Thompson Divide in Colorado 

 

To name just a few, the BLM has attempted to offered leases under the Paonia 

Reservoir Dam; a couple hundred feet uphill from the water well (on private property) 

supplying the adjacent winery; and, on the steep barren slopes surrounding the high 

school’s athletic field. The BLM even tried to lease highly erodible selenium-rich shales, 

where the agency itself was part of a multi-jurisdictional task force spending millions of 

taxpayer dollars to prevent selenium from degrading water quality. That task force 

recommended the area not be leased for oil and gas development.   5

 

Luckily for the North Fork and the American public, the Paonia Dam was not leased, nor 

the lands surrounding Hotchkiss High School. In fact, all of the aforementioned 

examples were pulled before the lease sale because a more adequate comment period 

allowed locals with actual on-the-ground knowledge, as well as officials from state and 

other federal agencies, to bring the conflicts to the BLM's attention. Under the current 

administration, which has moved to shorten comment time and to cut public input 

opportunities, we worry such ill-advised leasing schemes would proceed and the fight 

would just move to court. Where it sucks up time, money, and public funds.  

5 U.S. Bureau of Reclamation, Selenium Management Program “Program Formulation Document 
Gunnison River Basin, Colorado,” December 2011. Online 
www.usbr.gov/uc/wcao/progact/smp/docs/Final-SMP-ProgForm.pdf  

6 59



Written testimony, Pete Kolbenschlag: H.R. 3225 

Lately the BLM has been losing in court a lot, although it hasn’t slowed it down that 

much. Outside of sage grouse habitat, leasing under ancient, inadequate land use plans 

and in places it doesn’t belong proceeds apace. Leasing under these conditions, where 

stronger plan-based surface protections are clearly needed, puts our public lands at 

risk. This also points  to the wisdom of having a better process at the front-end and 

more transparency throughout. Like the reforms being proposed in H.R. 3225.  

 

Under the current system, once leased, public lands can remain in an uncertain state for 

a decade or longer, like “zombie leases” that won’t go away, that the BLM refuses to kill. 

Zombie leases can hang over public lands like Damocles’ Sword, fomenting uncertainty 

for local businesses, preventing other public uses or management updates, and always 

carrying a risk that a favorite hunting ground, a hiking trail, or family picnic spot might be 

ruined by a new industrial operation.  

 

The current leasing system holds our communities hostage; the fact that BLM has 

acknowledged that the drilling potential for most of the valley is “very low” makes this 

situation all the more confounding and ripe for reform. The provision in H.R. 3225 to 

shorten lease terms is critical to addressing this problem.  

 

July 4th weekend is Cherry Day’s in the North Fork Valley, among Colorado’s 

longest-running community events, a genuine expression of Americana that exists only 

in the memories of elders in much of the nation. People there have a pride of place. It 

runs deep and its multi-generational. Our town governments, like most small towns, are 

just regular folks that sit through long meetings on tedious subjects because they care 

about the businesses and people there.  

 

In Paonia, the valley’s largest town, the council meets every two weeks. Shortened 

comment periods are a direct affront to these local governments, and to the 

home-grown grass-roots governance they represent.  

7 60



Written testimony, Pete Kolbenschlag: H.R. 3225 

Like most Americans, what the people of the North Fork want is fairness and an 

even-handed approach to making these decisions based on the best current information 

and with an eye toward sustainability and stewardship.  

 

The reforms found in H.R. 3225,  such as meaningful review of leasing decisions 

including a 90-day period to file comments and protests and shorter lease terms (to 

encourage agency’s to always consider current information), are not complicated or 

extreme. But too often politics can make even the simplest things a protracted mess. I 

urge this committee to avoid that, and to support H.R. 3225 and the non-partisan, 

sensible reforms it enables.  

 

The North Fork is a transitioning community that seeks to self-determine our future. 

Since 2012, we have successfully fought several lease sales that relied on a 

30-year-old stale land use plan, and developed a community-based alternative for the 

BLM’s ongoing revision of that plan. SInce the earliest days of our founding, we have 

been a farming community engaged with the management of our public lands, and 

advocating for the protection of their critical resources, and the values we find there. As 

a community, the North Fork has provided comments every chance we can.  

 

We are an engaged community, and an American community that are eager to 

participate and be involved with helping our public agencies manage our public lands. 

But we expect a fair and even-handed process that allows for updated information to be 

part of the process, no matter what the proposal being considered. For issues like oil 

and gas, that brings significant impacts and can cause disruption and harm to our 

communities and business, that bar must be even higher. H.R. 3225 makes many 

important inroads toward those ends, and it deserves this full committee’s support.  

  

 

# # # 

8 61



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

June 24, 2019 
 

 

Midweek Market Proposal 

Summary:   

A request for discussion of closing Grand Avenue for a mid-week market/farmer’s market on 

the 200 block of Grand Avenue and in Poulos Park. 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

62



Sunday, May 19, 2019

Midweek Market  

Town Proposal 


- To the city of Paonia 


• We are delighted to present this project and excited that you share our views in the 
importance of creating a sustainable food system in our community. We look 
forward to working together in bringing a new and innovative farmers’ market to 
Paonia.


• The primary purpose of the Paonia Midweek Market will be to offer community 
residents and patrons the access to fresh, local, and organic produce. It will create 
an inviting environment conducive to a strong neighborhood and mutually 
beneficial interaction among all participants in the Paonia Community.  


- Goals 


• Connect our local producers to the community. Increase foot traffic in the 
downtown core area.  Helps to create thriving economic diversity and increases 
community building opportunities. 


- Location


• A regular weekly event downtown brings people in 
and increases local revenue. Some options 
include:


1. In the alley way in between grand ave and main 
street, between 1st and 2nd street.  


2. 8 vendors or fewer the event could be held in 
Poulos park.  


3. Town Parking lot behind town hall. 


4. Downtown between 1st and 2nd street on 
grand would be the ultimate goal. It is a vibrant 
location and there are other retail opportunities 
for shoppers.  There exists multiple places to 
gather before and after the event. 


• We may consider an inside location downtown for 

�1

1

23

4

63



Sunday, May 19, 2019
winter. The VoTech building could be used for this purpose.    


- Event Date and Time


• Wednesday Nights begins 530pm-730pm event concludes at 8pm.


- Looking to the future we would like to have the market transition into an evening 
gathering with wine, beer, & live music. 


- Money


• It would be convenient to keep track of money spent and earned with a separate 
town account for the mid-week market.


- Checks Payable to Town with Memo indicating that it is from the farmers 
market. 


- Mid-week market organizers would submit invoices for spending.


- The mid-week market goal is to be self sustaining not profit producing. 


- Let’s Make This Happen!


- We hope to work with you to organize a Midweek Market in Paonia. If you have 
additional questions that have not been answered by this document, please feel 
free to contact us:


- Michelle Pattison   mpattison@gmail.com


- Monica Foguth   monicafoguth@gmail.com

�264



1

Corinne Ferguson

From: Dave K
Sent: Wednesday, June 19, 2019 3:25 PM
To: Monica F
Cc: Ken Knight; Sam H; Michelle Pattison; Corinne Ferguson
Subject: Re: Midweek Market

Hi Monica and Michelle, I’ve checked in with Hays Drug and with Indigo Autumn and neither has any problem with your 
proposal providing that there is no disruption of parking, such as closing off the street or designating specific parking 
places for your event. You could try a pilot by seeing Corinne this week to get a park use permit and updating the 
Council in Tuesday about your plans (we don’t need to approve it or have it as an agenda item), it’s just good practice to 
keep the Town informed. 
Thanks 
Dave 

Dave Knutson 
 

 
On Jun 12, 2019, at 2:53 PM, Monica F   wrote: 

It is no problem to add that line to the Vendors Instructions.   
Warmly, 
Monica 
 
On Mon, Jun 10, 2019 at 11:34 AM Ken Knight <kdknight@townofpaonia.com> wrote: 

The one item that I would add to the Vendor Instructions is an item 5: 

  

Provide a sales tax certificate and acknowledge that all appropriate sales taxes will be collected and 
remitted to the State Department of Revenue.   

  

Now for most food vendors this won’t be necessary, but for other vendors, who’s products are subject 
to sales tax, it would be required. 

  

For normal ‘large event licenses’ we require the sponsoring organization to ensure that sales taxes are 
collected and remitted by the vendors (and provide a list of said vendors to the Town) and if we find 
they have not been, their ability to sponsor such events is revoked.   

  

Ken Knight 

Paonia Town Administrator 
65



2

970‐527‐4101 Office 

970‐778‐7486 Cell 

  

From: Monica F  >  
Sent: Monday, June 10, 2019 9:00 AM 
To: Dave K <DaveK@townofpaonia.com> 
Cc: Ken Knight <kdknight@townofpaonia.com>; Sam H <samh@townofpaonia.com>; Michelle Pattison 

 
Subject: Re: Midweek Market 

  

Hi Dave,  

Okay that sounds good :) I will include Michelle, she was instrumental in putting the proposal 
together.  I think we could go with Poulos Park to test it out. I look forward to hearing how the 
downtown merchants feel.   

Warmly, 

Monica  

  

On Mon, Jun 10, 2019 at 8:12 AM Dave K <DaveK@townofpaonia.com> wrote: 

Hi Monica, Sorry for the delay in getting back to you about this. You’ve done a nice job on the 
proposal. I’m wondering if the three of us could use email to hammer out details between now and 
the next council meeting on June 25? My first thought is to start small and use Poulos Park. I’ll check 
in with a few downtown merchants about it. 
 
Dave Knutson 

 

 
 
‐‐  

Warmly, 

Monica Foguth 
Phone (Text) :  

  

 
 
‐‐  
Warmly, 

66



3

Monica Foguth 
Phone (Text) :   

 

67



Wednesday, April 3, 2019

Paonia Mid-Week Market  

Vendors Instructions 


- Welcome to the Paonia Mid-Week Market!  Thank you for sharing your good or 
services with the community.  Our goal is to create a fun event for neighbors to 
collaborate and share their garden gems, specially crafted items, or personal 
services.  


- Market organizers work as volunteers and any extra money goes to the town.  
Please consider volunteering.  We have volunteer opportunities starting at as 
little as 20 minutes that you can do at home!  


- Four hours of volunteer time earns you a free booth at the market.


- Your booth space will be 10 X 10 and will correspond with a number on the map you 
are given.  


- Please bring a 13 gal. standard kitchen trash can with you to take away with you 
when you are done with the market.  If you would like to put out recycling please do 
so!  We ask you to do this so we can keep booth costs down by not paying for trash 
service.  Please pickup any trash immediately in front of your stall upon departing the  
market.  


- Market is at 530pm-730pm on Wednesday if you are a produce vendor.


- Market extends to 9pm for all other vendors.


- Please consider donating an item, service, or gift card to the raffle we have for those 
who walk or bike.


- Please consider giving a discount to those who bring their own bag, cup or plate so 
that we can discourage wasteful single-use products! Even as little as 5 cent 
discounts can encourage earth friendly behavior. 


- We encourage inter-market trade!  Please get to know your fellow vendors, have fun, 
and if there is anything you need or have a suggestions don’t be afraid to bring it to 
the organizers! 

�168



Vendor Waiver  

Paonia Mid-Week Market Release of Liability 


Liability Waiver: The Vendor and any of its employees, agents, or volunteers 
associated or to be associated with the activity for the 2019 Paonia Mid-Week Market, 
Shall waive and relinquish any and all claims that might result in any manner against 
the City of Paonia, their agents, public officers, officials or employees and authorized 
volunteers from said vendor and any of its employees, agents, or volunteers, except for 
acts caused by the willful and wanton misconduct by employees of the City of Paonia 
acting within the scope of their employment. 


Hold Harmless: The Vendor and any of its employees, agents, or volunteers 
associated or to be associated with the activity for the 2019 Paonia Mid-Week Market, 
to indemnify and hold Harmless the City of Paonia, their agents, public officials, 
officers, employees and authorized volunteers, from and against any and all legal 
actions, claims damages, losses or expenses arising out of the 2019 Mid-Week Market 
or any activity associated with the conduct if the vendor’s operations, including but not 
limited to claims for personal injury, disease or death, injury to or destruction of 
property, excluding claims caused by the willful commission or omission by employees 
of the City of Paonia acting within the scope of their employment.  Further, the vendor 
agrees to indemnify the City of Paonia and any of its agents, public officers, officials or 
employees and authorized volunteers for any attorney fees and court costs incurred or 
to be incurred in defending actions brought against them as a result of the vendors use 
of public property. 


I have read, understand and agree to the above paragraphs.


_______________________________________________                            _______________


Signature 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 Date


�169



2019 Paonia Mid-Week Market Application  
Name: ____________________________


Address:____________________________________________________________________________


City, State, & Zip:_____________________________________________________________________


Company Name: _____________________________________________________________________


Phone:___________________________ E-mail:____________________________________________


Best way to contact you?______________________________________________________________


Vendor Category: Produce/Floral:______ Craft ______ Food_____ Other_____


Please list the item(s) you intend to sell at the 2019 Paonia Mid-Week Market.  Please note with 
an asterisk ( * ) all items that you do not grow or produce yourself. Only items that have been 
listed may be sold.  Changing or adding any of the items you have listed to sell will require 
advanced approval from Paonia Mid-Week Market Organizers. 

_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________


For all items you do not grow or produce yourself, please provide information below where 
specific product was grown, crafted or processed (country/state/name of facility).

_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________


 


�270



Paonia Mid-Week Market Vendor Fees 

• With a Sponsorship Package You Get:


- Name of Organization on Advertising


- Guaranteed place every week


- Same booth place every week


- Double Booth 20 X 10 space 


2019 Vendor Fees:


_____ Individual (each date) $10


_____ Individual Business Resides in a Different County (each date) $20


_____ Individual Sponsorship Plan (each date) $40 


Make Check payable to 


Please indicate date(s) you will be in attendance:


June                        July                  August            September 

June 12 ____           July 3 ____       Aug 7 ____        Sept 4 ____


June 19 ____           July 10____      Aug 14 ____      Sept 11 ____


June 26 ____           July 17____     Aug 21 ____


	 	 	 July 24____     Aug 28 ____


	 	 	 July 31____


Rate Business Resides in 
Delta County 

Business Resides in a 
Different County 

Sponsorship Plan

Each Week $10 $20 $40

�371



By signing below, the undersigned agrees and affirms that:


1. They have the authority to apply their signature to this application on behalf of the 
applicant and:


2. The Vendor agrees to sell or offer for sale at the Paonia Mid-Week Market only such 
items as are listed on this application and approved by the Paonia Mid-Week 
Market organizers on the dates they have applied for, and;


3. All information provided in this application is correct and complete as to the best of 
their knowledge, and;


4. Acknowledges that they have read and understand the vendor rules and agree to 
abide by all rules that have been established for the operation of the Paonia Mid-
Week market. 


______________________________________________________________________________


Signature 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 Date 


�472



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

June 24, 2019 
 

 

Requested Discussion - Fence Height 

Summary:   

Community member requested discussion regarding the fence height and composition in the 

current ordinance. 

 

Notes: 

 

The only changes made to the fence ordinance was the inclusion of a $50 fence review fee and 

the decrease of six (6) inches from 3.5 to 3 feet on corner lots.  To offset costs to the 

community, fence reviews are initially completed by the Town Clerk, and are only referred to 

the building official if out of the ordinary or for Clerk clarification. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

73



 

Ordinance 2019-03 - Page 1 of 3 

ORDINANCE NO. 2019-02 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN OF 

PAONIA, COLORADO, AMENDING CHAPTER 18, ARTICLE 9, 

SECTION 10 TO THE TOWN OF PAONIA MUNICIPAL CODE 

 

RECITALS: 

 

WHEREAS, the Town of Paonia (the “Town”), in the County of Delta and State of Colorado, is 

a municipal corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of Colorado; and 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to C.R.S. § 31-23-301, the Town has the power to regulate buildings and 

other structures for the purposes of promoting health, safety and the general welfare of the 

community; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees determines that it is in the best interest of the community and 

the public health, safety and welfare of the citizens of the Town to amend the Town Code to add 

this provision to the Municipal Code.    

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 

TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO, AS FOLLOWS:  

 

Section 1.  Legislative Findings.   

 

The recitals to this Ordinance are adopted as findings of the Board of Trustees in support of the 

enactment of this Ordinance.  

 

Section 2.  Amendment of Town Code.  

 

Sec. 18-9-10 shall be repealed and amended to the Town Code as follows: 

 

(1) All fences and walls are subject to the applicable sections of the IBC. 

 

(2) Prior to the installation of a new fence, the property owner or their agent shall file for 

a fence review with the Town Building Official and shall pay the appropriate review 

fee as may be set by the Town Board of Trustees via resolution.   The purpose of the 

Town requiring a fence review and fee is to allow the Town Building Official to 

inspect the proposed fence plan to confirm that it meets the provisions of the Town 

Code, the IBC, and that the fence does not encroach on a public right-of-way.  

 

(3) No fence, hedge or wall may extend beyond or across a property line unless it is done 

with the joint agreement of the abutting property owners. It shall be the responsibility 

of the property owner to locate all property lines. 

 

(4) No fence, hedge or wall shall encroach upon a public right-of-way or a public 

sidewalk. 

74



 

Ordinance 2019-03 - Page 2 of 3 

 

(5) No barbed wire, sharp-pointed or electrically charged fence shall be permitted in the 

R-1, R-2, R-3, MH, C-1 or C-2 Districts. 

 

(6) Fences, hedges or walls shall not exceed four (4) feet in height from the front edge of 

the house to the property line. Rear yard fences, hedges or walls shall not exceed six 

(6) feet in height in the R-1, R-2, R-3 or MH Districts. The height shall be measured 

at the finished grade on the side of the fence nearest the street or abutting property.  

 

(7) On corner lots, no fence, hedge or wall exceeding thirty-six (36) inches in height shall 

be placed in a triangular area formed by three (3) points as established by:  

 

a. The intersection of the property lines at the corner (Point A); and 

 

b. Points B and C measured thirty (30) feet along the property lines from Point 

A. 

 

Section 3.  Severability.   

 

If any provision, clause, sentence or paragraph of this Ordinance or the application thereof to any 

person or circumstance shall be held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the other provisions 

of this Ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, and, to 

this end, the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable.  

 

Section 4.  Repeal of Prior Ordinances.  

 

All other ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.  

 

Section 5.  Ordinance Effect. 

 

Existing ordinances or parts of ordinances covering the same matters as embraced in this 

Ordinance are hereby repealed and any and all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with 

the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed, provided, however, that the repeal of any 

ordinance or parts of ordinances of the Town shall not revive any other section of any ordinance 

or ordinances hereto before repealed or superseded and further provided that this repeal shall not 

affect or prevent the prosecution or punishment of any person for any act done or committed in 

violation of any ordinance hereby repealed prior to the taking effect of this Ordinance.  

 

Section 6.  Effective Date. 

 

This Ordinance shall take effect thirty days after publication.     

 

INTRODUCED, READ AND REFERRED for second read before the Board of Trustees of 

the Town of Paonia, Colorado, on the 22nd day of January 2019. 

 

75



 

Ordinance 2019-03 - Page 3 of 3 

HEARD AND FINALLY ADOPTED by the Board of Trustees of the Town of Paonia, 

Colorado, this 12th day of February 2019. 

 

TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO, A 

MUNICIPAL CORPORATION 

 

      By: 

_______s/s_________________________ 

CHARLES STEWART, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

_______s/s_____________________________ 

J. CORINNE FERGUSON, Town Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

76



1

Corinne Ferguson

From: Dan Reardon <dreardon@coloradocode.net>
Sent: Monday, June 24, 2019 2:59 PM
To: Ken Knight; Corinne Ferguson
Subject: Re: Fences on street corners
Attachments: 20190624_124712.jpg

For what it's worth, I have attached a photo of a 36" high "open" fence at an intersection just a half‐mile from 
our home. I just took that photo an hour ago. 
 
When you gat right up next to it the fencing parallel to the on‐coming traffic appears solid ‐ I can't see 
anything beyond the corner of the fence as far as oncoming traffic goes. What does it look like once the roses 
or the vines start to cover it, and who will be responsible to monitor it? 
 
Food for thought. 
 
Dan Reardon 
Colorado Code Consulting, LLC 
www.coloradocode.net 
dreardon@coloradocode.net 
1‐970‐275‐4937 
 
View Only ‐ Free Access To Online Codes: https://codes.iccsafe.org/public/collections/I‐Codes 

From: Ken Knight <kdknight@townofpaonia.com> 
Sent: Monday, June 24, 2019 10:57:59 AM 
To: Corinne Ferguson 
Cc: Dan Reardon 
Subject: FW: Fences on street corners  
  
Attached is the Ridgeway Fence Code – it has language that addresses the taller fences that are more open.  I don’t 
believe that it is very clear and I don’t think we should be encouraging “chicken wire” fences, but I thought I’d pass this 
along.   
  
Ken Knight 
Paonia Town Administrator 
970‐527‐4101 Office 
970‐778‐7486 Cell 
  

From: Jennifer Coates <jcoates@town.ridgway.co.us>  
Sent: Saturday, June 22, 2019 1:18 PM 
To: Ken Knight <kdknight@townofpaonia.com> 
Subject: FW: Fences on street corners 
  
Hi Ken, 
Our fence regs are attached. 
Good luck, 

77



2

Jen 
  
  

From: CML Municipal Managers List <MGRLIST@LIST.CML.ORG> On Behalf Of Ken Knight 
Sent: Wednesday, June 12, 2019 4:19 PM 
To: MGRLIST@LIST.CML.ORG 
Subject: [MGRLIST] Fences on street corners 
  
Does anyone have an ordinance that differentiates between solid and picket fences on street corners?  I think that the 
“open” fences still create a sight line problems but have people who want to change our ordinances to allow for 6‐8 foot 
“open” fences on street corners.  
  
Thanks,  
  
Ken Knight 
Paonia Town Administrator 
970‐527‐4101 Office 
970‐778‐7486 Cell 
  
  
Visit www.cml.org Information > Cities & Towns Make It Possible for new ways to promote municipal services! 

78



79



 Ridgway Municipal Code 6-4-2 

 (6-4) 1 Revised September, 11 

CHAPTER 6 

SECTION 4 

Fence, Hedge and Wall Regulations 

Subsections: 

6-4-1 Fence, Hedge And Wall Restrictions. 
6-4-2 Enforcement. 
6-4-3 Nonconforming Fences Or Walls. 
6-4-4 Variances. 
 
 
 
6-4-1    FENCE, HEDGE AND WALL RESTRICTIONS. 
 
 (A)     (1)    No fence, rail or freestanding wall shall exceed six (6) feet in height within the Town, 
    except for those located within the I-1 and I-2 Light Industrial Districts which may 
    not exceed eight (8) feet in height.                   (Ord 10-2008) 
 

     (2)  In the Residential and Historic Residential Zoning Districts, fences, rails or 
freestanding walls located within the area between the property line and the front set  

   back line may not exceed four (4) feet in height, except for fences designed and 
intended to exclude deer may be up to six (6) feet high if they are substantially 
transparent at sight angles up to 45 degrees from perpendicular to the faces of the 
fence, and are constructed out of a (a) mesh; (b) woven wire; (c) rails and pickets or 
similar components which have a width no greater than their depth.     (Ord 10-2008) 

  
 (B)  No fence, freestanding wall or hedge or other plantings shall be constructed or maintained on 
corner lots in a place or at a height which unreasonably creates a traffic hazard by obstructing vision 
from vehicles on abutting streets. 
 
 (C)  Electrically charged fences are not allowed within the Town unless their location is made 
inaccessible to persons who would not know that the fence is electrified by virtue of another fence or 
structure. 
 
 (D)  Barbed wire fences may be allowed only I-1 and I-2 Light Industrial Districts, and only if the 
barbed wire is a minimum of six feet above the ground.  No barbed wire fence may be maintained in 
other districts unless necessary to confine livestock lawfully kept within the Town.  
                          (Ord 15-2006) 
 
 (E)  All fences shall be maintained in good and safe condition. 
 
6-4-2 ENFORCEMENT. 
 
 (A) It shall be unlawful for any person to violate any provision of this Section. 
 
 (B) Any violation of the provision of this Section is hereby declared to be a nuisance and may be 

80



6-4-3 Ridgway Municipal Code 

Revised September, 11 (6-4) 2 

abated in accordance with law. 
 
 (C) In addition to any of the remedies the Town may have, it may maintain an action in a court of 
competent jurisdiction to enjoin any violation of, or compel compliance with, any of the provisions of 
this Section. 
 
6-4-3 NONCONFORMING FENCES OR WALLS. 
 
 (A) Any fence or wall lawfully constructed and maintained in accordance with previously 
applicable regulations but not in conformity with these regulations, may be maintained in substantial 
conformity with its existing condition. 
 
 (B) Nonconforming fences or walls destroyed or removed for any reason, may be replaced only 
with a complying fence or wall. 
 
 (C) Nonconforming fences or walls for which a building permit had been issued under previous 
applicable regulations, may be constructed and maintained in accordance with such building permit as 
a nonconforming fence or wall. 
 

6-4-4 VARIANCES. 
 
 (A) A variance to the provisions of Section 6-4 may be granted by the Board of Adjustment 
following the review procedure set out in Subsection 7-3-18 of the Ridgway Municipal Code, if it 
determines that the requirements of Subsections 7-3-16(A), (C), and (D) of the Ridgway Municipal 
Code are met.                (Ord 16-1997) 
 
 (B) The fees and costs provided for in Subsection 7-3-20 of the Ridgway Municipal Code shall 
apply to any variance request.           (Ord 16-1997) 

81



 
LAND USE CODE 

CHAPTER 18.68 

GENERAL REGULATIONS 

SECTIONS: 

18.68.010 Fences. 
18.68.020 Vision Clearance Area. 
18.68.030 Access. 
18.68.040 Yard Requirements.  
18.68.050 Arterial Street Setback Requirements. 
18.68.070 Land Surveys. 
18.68.080 Commercial Excavation--Removal of Earth Products. 
18.68.090 Nonconforming Uses and Structures. 
18.68.100 Slope; Hillside Protection. Repealed in its entirety, Ord 2528, 7/5/89. 
18.68.110 Front Yard— General Exception. 
18.68.120 Utilities. 
18.68.130 Lot Size Requirements--General Exception. 
18.68.140 Accessory Buildings, Structures and Mechanical Equipment. 
18.68.150 Waiver of Right to Remonstrate and Consent to Participate in Costs of 

Improvements. 
18.68.160 Driveway Grades. 
 
 
SECTION 18.68.010  Fences. 
Fences, walls, hedges and screen planting shall be subject to the following standards: 
 
A. Height. 
 1. In any required front yard, provided they do not exceed three and one-half ( 3 ½) feet in 

 height. 
 2. In any rear or side yard, provided they do not exceed six and one-half (6 ½) feet in 

 height. 
 3. The height of fences or walls in rear or sideyard setback areas abutting a public street 

 shall be four (4) feet or less if said fences or walls are within ten (10) feet of any public 
 street except an alley. 

 4. The height of a fence is the vertical distance measured from the natural grade to the 
 highest point of the fence, including the structural supports. 

  a) Below-Grade Lots. On lots that are not generally level with the adjacent street, height 
  may be measured from the top of the adjacent sidewalk or curb, or, where curbs are  
  absent, from the crown of the adjacent street plus six inches.  

82



 
LAND USE CODE 

 b) When fences are built on top of retaining walls, or one lot is markedly higher than an 
adjacent lot, height shall be measured from the highest adjacent grade, except that 
the solar access of adjacent properties to the north shall be maintained in 
accordance with AMC 18.70. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B. Construction. 

1. The framework for newly constructed fences and walls shall face toward the builder's 
 property, except where fences are jointly constructed. 
2. Fences shall lean at an angle from the vertical plane no greater than five (5%) percent. 
 In cases where this limitation is exceeded and a written complaint is received by the 
 Planning Department, the property owner shall be notified, in writing, of the problem. The 
 Planning Department shall take action only on the basis of a written complaint, or on its 
 own action. 
3. Fences shall not be constructed across any waterway or stream identified on the official 

maps adopted pursuant to Section 18.62.060. Fences shall not be constructed within 
any designated floodway. Fences within water resource protection zones shall be 
located and constructed in accordance with Section 18.63.060.B.3. 

 
C.   Materials 

1.  The use of barbed wire, razor wire, electrified wire and similar security fencing materials 
shall be limited as follows: 
a) shall not be located adjacent to a sidewalk, a public way, or along the adjoining 
 property line of another person; 
b) shall not be erected or maintained at less than six and a half (6½) feet above grade; 
c) may be located in commercial, employment or industrial lands if not visible from the 

public right of way, or with approval from the Community Development Director on 
properties deemed to be hazardous or in need of additional security. 

 
D. Deer Fencing 

1.  Deer fencing may be attached to a permitted front, side, or rear yard fences provided the 
area in excess of the allowable fence heights per 18.68.010 is designed and constructed 
to provide a clear view through the fence.  
a)  Within required front yards at least eighty five percent (85%) of the surface shall be 

unobstructed to both light and air when viewed perpendicular to the plane of the 
fence.  

83



 
LAND USE CODE 

b)  Within required side and rear yards at least eighty percent (80%), of the surface shall 
be unobstructed to both light and air when viewed perpendicular to the plane of the 
fence. 

2.  Deer fencing shall have a minimum height of six and a half feet (6 ½’ ) and shall  not 
exceed eight feet (8’) above grade.  

3. Permitted deer fencing materials may include, woven wire fencing, field fence, “hog 
panels”, wire strand or polypropylene mesh net that is open and visible through the 
material. Within front yards all mesh material shall have a minimum open diameter of 
one and a half (1 ½) square inches. 

4.   Deer fencing shall be supported by structural supports, or tension wires,  that run along 
the top of the fence to prevent sagging. 

5.  Chain link fences shall not be considered to be deer fences under this section even if 
they meet the criteria above.  
(Ord 3060, 5/17/2012) 

 
 
SECTION 18.68.020  Vision Clearance Area. 
Vision clearance areas shall be provided with the following distances establishing the size of the 
vision clearance area: 
 
A. In any R district, the minimum distance shall be twenty-five (25) feet or, at intersections 

including an alley, ten (10) feet. 
 
B. In all other districts except the C-1, E-1, and CM districts, the minimum distance shall be 

fifteen (15) feet or, at intersections, including an alley, ten (10) feet. When the angle of 
intersection between streets, other than an alley, is less than thirty (30) degrees, the 
distance shall be twenty-five (25) feet. 

 
C. The vision clearance area shall contain no plantings, fences, walls, structures, or temporary 

or permanent obstructions exceeding two and one-half (2 ½) feet in height, measured from 
the top of the curb, except that street trees exceeding this height may be located in this 
area, provided all branches and foliage are removed to a height of eight (8) feet above the 
grade. 

 
D. The vision clearance standards established by this section are not subject to the Variance 

section of this title. (Ord 2605, S1, 1990; Ord 3036, amended, 08/17/2010) 
 
 
 

84



 
LAND USE CODE 

SECTION 18.68.030  Access. 
Each lot shall abut a minimum width of forty (40) feet upon a public street (other than an alley).  
This requirement may be decreased to twenty-five (25) feet on a cul-de-sac vehicle turn-around 
area. Except with an approved flag partition, no lot shall abut upon a street for a width of less 
than twenty-five (25) feet. 
 
 
SECTION 18.68.040  Yard Requirements.  
All yard measurements to and between buildings or structures or for the purpose of computing 
coverage or similar requirements shall be made to the building or nearest projection. 
Architectural projections may intrude eighteen (18) inches into required yards. Eaves and 
awnings may intrude three feet (3’) into required yards. (Ord 2951, 07/01/2008; Ord 3060, amended 5/17/2012) 
 
 
SECTION 18.68.050  Arterial Street Setback Requirements. 
The setback from an arterial street shall be no less than twenty (20) feet, or the width required 
to install sidewalk and parkrow improvements, consistent with the City of Ashland Street 
Standards in Section 18.88.020.K, whichever is less. (Ord 2959, 8/1/2008; Ord 3036, amended, 08/17/2010, Ord 3054, 
amended 12/16/2011) 
 
 
SECTION 18.68.070  Land Surveys. 
Before any action is taken pursuant to this Title which would cause adjustments or realignment 
of property lines, required yard areas, or setbacks, the exact lot lines shall be validated by 
location of official survey pins or by a survey performed by a licensed surveyor. 
 
 
SECTION 18.68.080  Commercial Excavation--Removal of Earth Products. 
A. Before a Conditional Use Permit for the commercial excavation and removal of earth 

products can be granted, plans and specifications showing the location of premises, grading 
plan, existing and proposed drainage, proposed truck access, and details of regrading and 
revegetation of the site shall be submitted to, and approved by, the Planning Commission. 

 
B. Any deviation from the plans as approved will serve as grounds to revoke the Conditional 

Use Permit. 
 
C. In reviewing the application, the Planning Commission may consider the most appropriate 

use of the land, distances from property lines, the protection of pedestrians and vehicles, the 
prevention of the collection and stagnation of water at all stages of the operation, and the 
rehabilitation of the land upon termination of operation. 

 
D. A bond may be required to ensure performance. 
 
E. Any expansion of a nonconforming commercial excavation shall require a Conditional Use 

Permit.  An expansion is defined as removal of additional undisturbed topsoil or vegetation 
or otherwise enlarging the area which had been mined, commonly referred to as the quarry 
face or active quarry area. (Ord 2290 S2, 1984) 

 
 

85



 
LAND USE CODE 

SECTION 18.68.090  Nonconforming Uses and Structures. 
A. A non-conforming use or structure may not be enlarged, extended, reconstructed, 

substituted, or structurally altered, except as follows: 
1. When authorized in accordance with the same procedure as provided in Conditional Use 

Chapter 18.104 and the criteria of Section 18.104.050(B and C), a nonconforming use 
may be changed to one of the same or a more restricted nature, except that a 
Conditional Use Permit need not be obtained when the use is changed to a permitted 
use within the zoning district. 

2. When authorized in accordance with the same procedure as provided in Conditional Use 
Chapter 18.104 and the criteria of Section 18.104.050(B and C), nonconforming 
structure may be enlarged, extended, reconstructed or the footprint modified, except that 
a Conditional Use Permit need not be obtained when the addition or extension meets all 
requirements of this Title. 

3. A non-conforming structure may be restored or rehabilitated if is not changed in size or 
shape, provided that the use of the structure is not changed except if in conformance 
with the procedures of Section 18.68.090.A.1 above. 

4. Nothing in this section shall be deemed to prevent the normal maintenance and repair of 
a non-conforming structure or its restoration to a safe condition when declared to be 
unsafe by any official charged with protecting public safety. 

5. A legal nonconforming structure or nonconforming use that is damaged to an extent of 
50% or more of its replacement cost may be restored only if the damage was not 
intentionally caused by the property owner and the nonconformity is not increased. Any 
residential structure(s), including multiple-family, in a residential zone damaged beyond 
50% of its replacement cost by a catastrophe, such as fire that is not intentionally 
caused by the owner, may be reconstructed at the original density provided the 
reconstruction is commenced within 2 years after the catastrophe. 

 
B. Discontinuance. If the nonconforming use of a building structure, or premises ceases for a 

period of six (6) months or more, said use shall be considered abandoned; and said 
building, structure, or premises shall thereafter be used only for uses permitted in the district 
in which it is located. Discontinuance shall not include a period of active reconstruction 
following a fire or other result of natural hazard; and the Planning Commission may extend 
the discontinuance period in the event of special unique unforeseen circumstances. 

 
C. Reactivation.  A non-conforming use, which has been abandoned for a period of more than 

six (6) months may be reactivated to an equivalent or more restricted use through the 
Conditional Use and Site Review process. In evaluating whether or not to permit the 
reactivation of a non-conforming use, the Planning Commission, in addition to using the 
criteria required for a Conditional Use Permit and Site Review, shall also use the following 
additional criteria: 
1. That any improvements for the reactivation of the non-conforming use on the site shall 

be less than fifty (50%) percent of the value of the structure. The value of the structure 
shall be determined by an independent real estate appraiser licensed in the State of 
Oregon. The value of the improvement shall be determined based upon copies of the 
contractor’s bid for said improvements, which shall be required with the Conditional Use 
permit application.  Personal property necessary for the operation of the business or site 
improvements not included in the structure shall not be counted as improvements under 
this criterion.  

2. An assessment that the traffic generated by the proposed use would not be greater than 
permitted uses on the site.  In assessing the traffic generated by the proposed use, the 

86



 
LAND USE CODE 

Planning Commission shall consider the number of vehicle trips per day, the hours of 
operation, and the types of traffic generated; i.e., truck or passenger vehicle. The 
Planning Commission shall modify the Conditional Use Permit so that the operation of 
the non-conforming use is limited to the same traffic impact as permitted uses in the 
same zone. 

3. That the noise generated by the proposal will be mitigated so that it complies with the 
Ashland Noise Ordinance, Chapter 9.08.170, and also that it does not exceed the 
average ambient noise level already existing in the area, as measured by this standard. 

4. That there will be no lighting of the property which would have direct illumination on 
adjacent uses and that there would be no reflected light from the property greater than 
the amount of reflected light from any permitted use in that same zone. 

5. In a residential zone the findings must further address that such reactivation will further 
implement Goal VI, Policy 2, Housing Chapter of the Ashland Comprehensive Plan. 

6. Nothing herein shall apply to non-conforming signs, which are governed by the 
provisions of Section 18.96.150 of this Code.  

 
D. Building or structure: Nothing contained in this Title shall require any change in the plans, 

construction, alteration, or designated use of a structure for which a building permit has 
been issued and construction has commenced prior to the adoption of the ordinance 
codified herein and subsequent amendments thereto, except that if the designated use will 
be nonconforming, it shall, for the purpose of subsection (B) of this Section, be a 
discontinued use if not in operation within two (2) years of the date of issuance of the 
building permit. (Ord 2951, amended, 07/01/2008) 

 
 
SECTION 18.68.100 Slope; Hillside Protection.  Repealed in its entirety, Ord. 2528, 7/5/89. 
 
 
SECTION 18.68.110  Front Yard - General Exception. 
A. If there are dwellings or accessory buildings on both abutting lots (even if separated by an 

alley or private way) with front or side yards abutting a public street with less than the 
required setback for the district, the front yard for the lot need not exceed the average yard 
of the abutting structures. 

 
B. If there is a dwelling or accessory building on one (1) abutting lot with a front yard of less 

than the required depth for the district, the front yard need not exceed a depth one-half (½) 
way between the depth of the abutting lot and the required front yard depth. 

 
C. The front yard may be reduced to ten (10) feet on hillside lots where the terrain has an 

average steepness equal to, or exceeding a one (1) foot rise or fall in four (4) feet of 
horizontal distance within the entire required yard, said vertical rise or fall to be measured 
from the natural ground level at the property line. (Ord 2951, amended, 07/01/2008) 

 
 
SECTION 18.68.120  Utilities. 
Except as provided in Chapter 18.72 for wireless communication systems, the erection, 
construction, alteration, or maintenance by public utility or municipal or other government 
agencies of underground or overhead gas, electrical, steam or water transmission or distribution 
systems, collection, communication, supply or disposal systems, including poles, towers, wires, 

87



 
LAND USE CODE 

mains, drains, sewers, pipes, conduits, cables, fire alarm boxes, police equipment and 
accessories in connection therewith, but not including buildings or satellite disc antennas, shall 
be permitted in any district, subject to the normal permit process. Utility transmission and 
distribution lines, poles and towers may exceed the height limits otherwise provided for in this 
Title, except in the Airport Overlay District. (Ord 2457 S1, 1988; Ord 3802 S3, 1997) 
 
 
SECTION 18.68.130  Lot Size Requirements - General Exception. 
If a lot or the aggregate of contiguous lots or land parcels held in single ownership and recorded 
in the office of the County Clerk at the time of passage of the ordinance codified herein, has an 
area or dimension which does not meet the lot size requirements of the district in which the 
property is located, the lot or aggregate holdings may be occupied by a use permitted outright in 
the district subject to all other requirements, provided it complied with all ordinances when it was 
recorded. 
 
 
SECTION 18.68.140  Accessory Buildings, Structures and Mechanical Equipment. 
Accessory buildings and structures shall comply with all requirements for the principal use 
except where specifically modified by this Title and shall comply with the following limitations: 
A. A greenhouse or hothouse may be maintained accessory to a dwelling in an R district. 
 
B. A guest house may be maintained accessory to a single-family dwelling provided there are 

no kitchen cooking facilities in the guest house. 
 
C. An enclosure housing micro-livestock may be maintained in a residential district provided 

the following conditions are met:  
1. Enclosures housing micro-livestock shall be constructed as follows:   

a) they shall not be located in a required front yard.  
b)   they shall be setback a minimum of ten (10) feet from abutting properties. 
c) they shall be at least twenty (20) feet from dwellings on adjoining properties. 
d) structures shall not exceed six (6) feet in height.  
e)  chicken coops and rabbit hutches shall not exceed forty (40) square feet in area, or 

four (4) square feet per animal, whichever is greater. 
f)  chicken runs and rabbit runs, as enclosed outdoor structures, shall not exceed one 

hundred (100) square feet in area, or ten (10) square feet per animal, whichever is 
greater.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

88



 
LAND USE CODE 

 
2. The keeping of micro-livestock and the maintenance of their environment shall be in 

accordance with Keeping of Animals chapter of the Ashland Municipal Code (Ch. 
9.08.040). (Ord 3060, 5/17/2012; Ord 3070, 9/7/2012; Ord 3084, 8/20/13) 

 
D. Mechanical equipment shall not be located between the main structure on the site and any 

street adjacent to a front or side yard, and every attempt shall be made to place such 
equipment so that it is not visible from adjacent public streets. Mechanical equipment and 
associated enclosures, no taller than allowed fence heights, may be located within required 
side or rear yards, provided such installation and operation is consistent with other 
provisions of this Title or the Ashland Municipal Code, including but not limited to noise 
attenuation. Any installation of mechanical equipment shall require a building permit.   

 
E.  Rain barrels may be located within required side or rear yards provided such installation and 

operation is consistent with other provisions of this Title or the Ashland Municipal Code, and 
as follows:  
1. Rain barrels shall not exceed six (6) feet in height; and  
2. Rain barrels shall be located so that a minimum clear width of three (3) feet is provided 

and maintained between the barrel and property line; and 
3. Rain barrels shall be secured and installed on a sturdy and level foundation, or platform, 

designed to support the rain barrel's full weight. 
4. Every attempt shall be made to place rain barrels so that they are screened from view of 

adjacent properties and public streets. (Ord 3060, 5/17/2012) 
 
F. Regardless of the side and rear yard requirements of the district, in a residential district, a 

side or rear yard may be reduced to three (3) feet for an accessory structure erected more 
than fifty (50) feet from any street, other than alleys, provided the structure is detached and 
separated from other buildings and structures by ten (10) feet or more, and is no more than 
fifteen (15) feet in height. Any conversion of such accessory structure to an accessory 
residential unit shall conform to other requirements of this Title for accessory residential 
units, including any required planning action and/or site review. (Ord 2951, amended, 07/01/2008) 

 
 
SECTION 18.68.150  Waiver of Right to Remonstrate and Consent to Participate in Costs 
of Improvements. 
Whenever a request is made for a building permit which involves new construction of a new 
residential unit and/or any request involving a planning action which would increase traffic flow 
on any street not fully improved, the applicant is required to legally agree to participate in the 
costs and to waive the rights of the owner of the subject property to remonstrate both with 
respect to the owners agreeing to participate in the costs of full street improvements and to not 
remonstrate to the formation of a local improvement district, to cover such improvements and 
costs thereof. Full street improvements shall include paving, curb, gutter, sidewalks, and the 
undergrounding of utilities. This requirement is a condition precedent to the issuance of a 
building permit or the granting of approval of a planning action and if the owner declines to so 
agree, then the building permit and/or planning action shall be denied. This shall not require 
paving of alleys, and shall not be construed as waiving property owners rights to present their 
views during a public hearing held by the City Council. (Ord 2589, 1990) 
 
 

89



 
LAND USE CODE 

SECTION 18.68.160  Driveway Grades. 
Grades for new driveways in all zones shall not exceed a grade of 20% for any portion of the 
driveway. All driveways shall be designed in accord with City of Ashland standards and installed 
prior to issuance of a certificate of occupancy for new construction. If required by the City, the 
developer or owner shall provide certification of driveway grade by a licensed land surveyor.  All 
vision clearance standards associated with driveway entrances onto public streets shall not be 
subject to the Variance section of this title. (Ord 2951, amended, 07/01/2008) 
 
 

90



6/19/2019 19.20.050 Fences, Walls, and Hedges.

https://qcode.us/codes/westhollywood/view.php?topic=19-19_3-19_20-19_20_050 1/3

West Hollywood Municipal Code
Up Previous Next Main Search Print No Frames

Title 19 Zoning Ordinance
 Article 19-3 Site Planning and General Development Standards
  Chapter 19.20 General Property Development and Use Standards

19.20.050 Fences, Walls, and Hedges.*

* CodeAlert: This topic has been affected by Ordinance No. 19-1058. To view amendments and newly added provisions,
please refer to the CodeAlert Amendment List.

          Fences, walls, and hedges shall be installed and maintained in compliance with the provisions of this section.
          A.  Maximum Height. The height of a fence, wall, or hedge shall not exceed the maximums allowed by this section.
                1.   Measurement of Height. The maximum height of a fence, wall, or hedge allowed by this section shall be
measured from the highest ground level within two feet of either side of the fence, wall, or hedge.
                2.   Allowed Height Reduction for Required Fences and Walls. To allow for variation in topography, the height
of a fence or wall that is required by this Zoning Ordinance for screening, separation between land uses, or other
purposes, may vary. The fence or wall may be as much as six inches lower than the required minimum height, but in no
event shall the average height of the fence or wall exceed the maximum height identified in this section.
                3.   Exempt Fences and Walls. A fence or wall that is required by state or federal law to exceed the height limits
of this section shall be exempt from these requirements.
          B.   General Standards for All Fences, Walls, and Hedges. All fences, walls, and hedges in all zoning districts shall
comply with the following requirements, as applicable.
                1.   Color. Fences and walls, excluding masonry with integral color and approved permanent finishes, shall be
stained or painted in a consistent color scheme, which complements the surroundings.
                2.   Materials. Allowable materials for fences and walls shall be limited to wood, masonry, decorative metal (for
example, wrought iron), and other materials approved by the Director consistent with the city’s design guidelines. Barbed
wire, concertina wire, grape stakes, chain-link, or chain-link with wood slats shall not be allowed as fencing material;
except that chain link may be allowed in compliance with subsection (E) below (Security Fencing).
                3.   Wrought Iron Design. Wrought iron fences shall not terminate at the top in outward curves.
                4.   Perimeter Fence Finishes. All sides of all perimeter fencing shall be finished in the same colors and textures.
                5.   Maintenance. Fences, walls, and hedges shall be continuously maintained in an orderly, neat, and good
condition, at no more than their maximum allowed height.
          C.   Residential Zoning District Height Limits. Fences, walls, and hedges on sites within residential zoning districts
shall not exceed the following height limits. Residential properties with a parking overlay designation that are used as
parking areas, and residential properties with nonconforming commercial uses are subject to the requirements of
subsection (D), below.
                1.   Height Limit Within Front Setback.
                      a.   Fences and Walls. Solid fences and walls within a required front setback shall not exceed a height of 42
inches; except that:
                            (1)  Fences, walls, and combinations of fences and walls that are at least 50 percent transparent not to
exceed six feet in height may be allowed in all residential front setbacks. The portion of a fence or wall that exceeds 42
inches in height shall be at least 50% transparent.
                            (2)  A solid fence or wall or combination of fence and wall up to a maximum height of six feet may be
allowed where the front setback of the residential parcel faces or abuts a General Plan-designated secondary highway, or a
site zoned for or developed with a commercial use, or up to a maximum height of ten feet wherever property zoned for
residential abuts a commercial zone or a commercial use, if the Review Authority determines that the fence or wall will
not:91



6/19/2019 19.20.050 Fences, Walls, and Hedges.

https://qcode.us/codes/westhollywood/view.php?topic=19-19_3-19_20-19_20_050 2/3

                                  (a)  Unduly obstruct the view from neighboring residential properties; or
                                  (b)  Create a safety hazard to vehicular or pedestrian traffic.
          The height and type of the material to be used in constructing the wall shall be approved by the Director, or in the
case of a project requiring Planning Commission approval, by the Commission, to ensure that the increased height is
compatible with the use of the property, does not detract from the pedestrian character of the street and is integrated into
the architecture and site design. (See Section 19.28.130 concerning driveway visibility.)
                      b.   Hedges. Hedges (and any supporting apparatus) are allowed with no restriction on height so long as the
hedges do not block sightlines for drivers per Section 19.28.130(D) or pedestrians as determined by the Director. The
Director may require trimming, removal, or other modifications to the hedge as required to promote and protect the public
health, safety, and welfare.
                2.   Height Limit Within Street Side Setbacks. Fences, walls, and hedges within a required street side setback
shall not exceed 42 inches in height. A 50 percent transparent fence may be al-lowed within the setback area up to six feet
in height.
                3.   Height Limit Within Interior Side and Rear Setbacks. Fences, walls, and hedges within a required interior
side or rear setback shall not exceed six feet in height. Except where the property abuts a site zoned for or developed with
a commercial use, including parking areas for commercial uses, a solid decorative wall or fence up to ten feet in height
may be constructed along the property line abutting the property with the commercial use. The height and materials of the
wall or fence shall be approved by the applicable Review Authority for the project to ensure that the increased height is
compatible with the use of the property, does not detract from the pedestrian character of the street, and is integrated into
the architecture and site design.
                4.   Height Limit Outside of Required Setback Areas. Fences, walls, and hedges not within any required setback
shall not exceed six feet in height.
          D.  Commercial Zoning Districts. The following standards shall apply to fences, walls, and hedges on sites within
commercial zoning districts.
                1.   Advertising. Fence, wall, or hedge surfaces shall not be used for advertising or display unless authorized by
a creative sign permit (Section 19.34.060).
                2.   Maintenance. The walls of any building which partly enclose a yard area or are visible from a street frontage
shall be stained, painted, or provided with integral color, as appropriate to the wall surface material used, and permanently
maintained.
                3.   Screening Required Adjacent to Residential Zones. Wherever a site zoned for or developed with a
commercial use abuts a residential zone, a solid decorative wall not less than six feet nor greater than ten feet in height
shall be constructed along the property line abutting the residential zone. The height and materials of the wall shall be
approved by the applicable review authority for the project. The Review Authority may require a wall up to 10 feet high,
when such height is deemed necessary to protect neighboring residential properties from noise impacts or to otherwise
protect the public health, safety and welfare.
                4.   Design. A wall abutting a right-of-way shall be designed to be compatible with the building architecture on
the site, and shall be provided with landscaping between the wall and the right-of-way. (See also Section 19.26.040(B)(1)
(a).)
                5.   Height Limit. Fences and walls shall not exceed 42 inches in height except where the Review Authority
determines that increased height is compatible with the use of the property, does not detract from the pedestrian character
of the street, and is integrated into the architecture and site design.  (See Section 19.28.130 concerning driveway
visibility.)
          E.  Security Fencing. Except as provided below, chain-link fencing is permitted for a maximum of ninety days to
enclose abandoned, undeveloped or vacant property. After ninety days, fencing used to enclose abandoned,
underdeveloped or vacant property shall comply with the requirements of Section 7.24.010(d) of this code. Properties
actively being developed pursuant to a current and valid building permit may be secured for more than ninety days with
chain-link fencing at the discretion of the Director of Community Development or his or her designee.
          F.   Retaining Wall Standards. Retaining walls with a maximum height of six feet are allowed in all setbacks,
provided that they are designed and constructed with an appearance similar to the buildings and other structures on the
site, with compatible colors, finishes, and materials, and preferably with a color that is integral with the wall material.
92



6/19/2019 19.20.050 Fences, Walls, and Hedges.

https://qcode.us/codes/westhollywood/view.php?topic=19-19_3-19_20-19_20_050 3/3

                1.   Where a retaining wall protects a cut below the natural grade and is located on a front, side, or rear lot line,
the retaining wall may be topped by a fence or wall of a total aggregate height that would otherwise be allowed at the
location if no retaining wall existed. Where the retaining wall contains a fill, the height of the retaining wall built to retain
the fill shall be considered as contributing to the overall allowable height of a fence or wall. In any event, an open-work
non-view-obscuring fence of forty-two inches may be erected at the top of the retaining wall for safety purposes.
                2.   Where a fence or wall is located in the required yard adjacent to a retaining wall containing a fill, the fence
or wall shall be set back from the retaining wall a distance of one foot for each one foot in height, to a maximum distance
of five feet. However, this does not allow a fence or wall in required yards higher than allowed by this section. The area
between the fence or wall and the retaining wall shall be landscaped and continuously maintained in an orderly, neat, and
good condition.
          Retaining walls shall incorporate design features similar to the other structures on the site, and use compatible
colors, finishes, and materials, in compliance with this section.
 

Figure 3-1
FENCE AND WALL STANDARDS

 
(Ord. 14-940 § 11, 2014; Ord. 07-752 § 7, 2007; Ord. 02-643 §§ 9—13, 2003; Ord. 02-615 § 2, 2002; Ord. 01-594 § 2,
2001)
 

View the mobile version.

93



This supplement is intended to help in the design and construction of fences that meet City standards. Full 

details are available in the City of Durango’s Land Use and Development Code Section 3-5-1-1. 

Height & Transparency Requirements 
Height & Transparency in Residential Areas 

 Fences in residential zones can be a maximum of 6-feet tall.  

 In front setback areas, fences can only be 4-feet tall and must have 50% transparency.  

 Fences outside the front setback that go from a side wall plane to a side lot line or are placed parallel 

to a side street in front of the rear wall plane must have 50% transparency above 4-feet.  

 Where there are grade changes between properties, the height can be increased the amount of the 

grade change up to a maximum of 8-feet.  

 Any fence on a property line between lots of different orientation shall be built to the more restrictive 

standard.  

Height & Transparency in Commercial Areas 

 Fences/walls in the LI zone can be 8-feet tall. 

 Fences/walls in all other nonresidential zones can be 6-feet tall.  

 Fences in the front setback of mixed use zones can be 4-feet tall and must have 50% transparency.  

Design & Materials in All Areas 

 The LUDC states, “All fences / walls must be made of traditional fencing/wall materials, including wood 

pickets, wrought iron, wire, chain link, block, etc. No other material shall be permitted without approval 

of the Administrator.” 

 Structural framework must be oriented to the interior of the property. 

 No fence/wall is allowed within corner sight distance areas or visibility sight triangles as shown on the di-

agram on Page 2. See Sections 4-2-2-12 & 4-2-2-13 or ask staff for a detailed explanation of these areas. 

 No barbed wire, razor edge, or electric wire fencing, nor fences with points or sharp edges along the 

top of the fence, shall be permitted without approval of the Administrator. 

Height Measurement 
The height of fences, walls, or retaining walls is measured as the vertical distance from a point of measure-

ment at the average finished grade for each interval to the highest point at the top of the fence or wall, 

excluding posts and pilasters. 

In general, fence/wall height is measured in 40 foot horizontal intervals, or the distance between posts/

pilasters, whichever is shorter. However, where the average finished grade exceeds five percent (5%), the 

horizontal interval between height measurements shall be equal to two divided by the slope, where the 

slope is expressed as rise divided by run. 

Other Fence/Wall Standards   
 Fence/wall height may be increased two inches when spacing for drainage under the fence is needed.  

 An open arch or pergola may exceed height limits by a maximum of two additional feet for a length 

not to exceed four feet. No more than one such element shall be provided for every 20 feet of fence 

length. Also,  

 Garden walls are exempt from fence/wall permits so long as they retain raised garden beds but are not 

used to retain any natural slope, and the maximum height of a garden wall shall be 24 inches. 

Graphics which illustrate the standards above are shown on Page 2 of this handout. 

FENCE/WALL PERMIT DESIGN SUPPLEMENT 

LAND USE & DEVELOPMENT 

 G U I D E B O O K  

Updated June 2014 Page 1 of 2 

94



Height, Transparency, & Materials Illustrations 
The graphics below illustrates examples of acceptable fence designs for areas that allow a four 

foot tall fence with 50% transparency.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The graphic below illustrates an example of an acceptable design for areas that require 50% transparency 

above four feet. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Height Measurement Illustration 
(See LUDC Sections 4-2-2-12 & 4-2-2-13 or ask staff for a detailed explanation.) 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Visibility Triangles Dimensions & Illustration 
(See LUDC Sections 4-2-2-12 & 4-2-2-13 or ask staff for a detailed explanation of these areas.) 

 

FENCE/WALL PERMIT DESIGN SUPPLEMENT 

Updated July 2014 Page 2 of 2 

Intersection Type 
Street Leg 

Measurement 

Driveway Leg 

Measurement 

Street-to-Street 35’ NA 

Driveway/Alley-to-Local Street 18’ 18’ 

Driveway-to-Collector Street 23’ 23’ 

Driveway-to-Arterial Street 28’ 28’ 

95



6/19/19  Deborah Spiegel 255 Orchard 

I am on the agenda to revisit the new fence ordinance.   

1 Solid vsTransparent Fences 

 It is my understanding that the purpose of the change in the fence height for corner properties 

is visibility. The new ordinance does not acknowledge transparency as a safety feature in a 

fence. Instead, transparent fences and solid privacy fences are treated as the same. 

A transparent fence would include wire, chain link, wrought iron, and pickets, whereas a solid 

fence has no visual.  Here are some examples of transparent fences in town, showing good 

visibility.  Safe. Yet not necessarily short. 

This one I think is 5 feet tall. 

 

 

 

 

96



The next one is 4 feet tall on the corner: 

 

 

97



 

This photo of a 6 foot chain link fence on the corner at town park, with clear visibility. 

 

 

98



More concerning than fence height in visibility are hedges, vines, bushes, etc. I have seen street 

corners here in town that have no fence  but the bushes are so high and thick that there is no 

visibility.  I in no way intend to bring any harm to any person by sharing a photo I took of some 

greenery, but merely want to mention it to illustrate the fact that I could have a 3 foot fence and 

this much growth and you would not be able to see.  Fence height is not the issue in visibility. 

Transparency is. 

 

(* I will later add a couple of other photos of places that have growth that is NOT a problem as it 

is low enough to have clear visitiliby.) 

 

99



Questions: 

How many traffic accidents have occurred here in Paonia due to a fence? 

  And how many due to hedges? 

 And how many loose dogs require the attention of the town? 

2.Dog Issues 

 The 3 foot fence height is an issue if you need to contain a large dog.  Dogs at large pose their 

own safety risk.  I live on a corner and want to put a fence to keep my dog in the yard, and other 

people's dogs off of my flower beds. As you can see, a 3 foot fence will be useless for my dog.  

Many people have problems keeping their dogs in their yard even with a 4 foot fence. 

 

 

100



 

101



Here are several solutions: 

a. The fence height could be up to 6 feet as long as it is transparent.  This could improve 

the incidence of loose dogs in town while providing visibility. 

b. We could adopt a similar system to  the following: 

I saw an ordinance that even allows a person with a front yard fence that is 3  or 4 feet tall to 

have a wire fence above it, that is then transparent.   This is taken from the Ashland, Oregon 

fence ordinance: (I have included the ordinance in full as an attachment) 

 

They allow this for deer fencing: 

1. Deer fencing may be attached to a permitted front, side, or rear yard fences provided 

the area in excess of the allowable fence heights per 18.68.010 is designed and 

constructed to provide a clear view through the fence. 

a) Within required front yards at least eighty five percent (85%) of the surface shall be 

unobstructed to both light and air when viewed perpendicular to the plane of the fence. 

 

b) Within required side and rear yards at least eighty percent (80%), of the surface shall 

be unobstructed to both light and air when viewed perpendicular to the plane of the 

fence. 

102



2. Deer fencing shall have a minimum height of six and a half feet (6 ½’ ) and shall not 

exceed eight feet (8’) above grade. 

3. Permitted deer fencing materials may include, woven wire fencing, field fence, “hog 

panels”, wire strand or polypropylene mesh net that is open and visible through the 

material. Within front yards all mesh material shall have a minimum open diameter of 

one and a half (1 ½) square inches. 

4. Deer fencing shall be supported by structural supports, or tension wires,that run along 

the top of the fence to prevent sagging. 

5. Chain link fences shall not be considered to be deer fences under this section even if 

they meet the criteria above. 

 

Here is an article I found in another town who had issue with fence height and how it was 

resolved in Conroe, Tx. 

“ Conroe residents will no longer have to worry about what some called an unnecessary 

height restriction on fences. 

City Council members altered an ordinance Thursday night, changing the maximum 

height of front-yard fences to 6 feet rather than 4 feet as passed in a prior meeting. 

“No permit is required for a conforming fence if it is 6 foot in height or under,” Assistant 

Director of Community Development Nancy Mikeska said. “We’re actually measuring the 

panel, not any drainage panels or rot boards or anything like that.” 

 

If a fence is higher than 6 foot, it must be permitted through the city. 

 

“There will be some requirements we have you do to ensure that that fence you’ve 

constructed over 6 foot is done so safely and so we can establish that we know it is up 

there in a manner that is safe for our citizens and secure,” Mikeska said. 

 

103



This is already in the city’s building code but would have been prohibited under the fence 

ordinance’s previous height requirement. Mikeska said the city “hasn’t been good at 

following” the building code’s permitting requirement for the fences, but they will change 

that. 

 

“That is a result of the change brought up by our citizens with regard to height and with 

regard to the council some wanting lower, some wanting higher,” Mikeska said. “This 

way, we’re going to leave it to the staff to make sure if you’re going to put up a fence 

higher than 6 foot - it can be any height that you want - it’s going to be done substantially 

secure and in a manner that is safe for our citizens, not just your family, but for people 

walking by also.” 

 

Existing fences that exceed the height limit will no longer be required to be torn down or 

replaced so long as they conform with the other ordinance language including 

construction materials. 

 

Fences that have deteriorated in such a way that violate the rest of the ordinance will 

have to be rebuilt or torn down immediately, according to Mikeska. 

 

Two Conroe residents voiced concerns Wednesday that the fence ordinance, at the 

basic level, violated property owners’ rights. One resident questioned what “substantially 

transparent” was defined as. This was a concern because the resident thought if the 

slats had to be too wide, animals could escape. 

 

City Attorney Marc Winberry said the test was if standing on one side of the fence 

someone can make out that “it was a person, a house” or other items on the other side. 

He continued saying the width of the openings also depends on the material - chain-link 

fencing will have different spacing than wooden fences, so the materials could be 

spaced apart in a way that both keeps animals out and is transparent enough to comply. 

 

104



Most public complaints of the ordinance, aside from generic property rights, came from 

the height requirement. Some residents even held signs bashing the ordinance in 

downtown around the time when the ordinance was first passed. 

 

Initially, the fence ordinance passed with just one “no” vote: Councilman Duke Coon, 

who felt the ordinance’s restrictions were unfair and unsafe. Coon said the lower height 

restriction would make it unsafe for residents to keep a large dog in the yard. 

The fence ordinance’s height and transparency restrictions only apply to the fencing that 

is in front of the house. Any fencing that is at or behind the front of the house can be 

privacy fencing” 

 

The West Hollywood, CA fence ordinance clearly distinguishes between solid and 

transparent fences: 

Solid fences and walls within a required front setback shall not exceed a height of 42 inches; 

except that: 

                            (1)  Fences, walls, and combinations of fences and walls that are at least 50 

percent transparent not to exceed six feet in height may be allowed in all residential front 

setbacks. The portion of a fence or wall that exceeds 42 inches in height shall be at least 50% 

transparent. 

                             

 

 

 

 

 

 

105



Visibility triangles: 

I am happy that our town ordinance does not ask us to cut out entire triangles of fence in order 

to have visibility.  Here is my solution for otherwise providing the visibility triangle without 

restricting fence height to 3 feet, and would like other people’s suggestions as well: 

As I mentioned before, if a fence provides ample visibility, such as a wire fence, a chain link 

fence, or a wrought iron fence,  any height of fence can provide visibility. If it’s a solid fence the 

height on the corner must be limited, but they can add transparent fencing to the top. 

In West Hollywood this is how they wrote up the hedge portion: 

Hedges. Hedges (and any supporting apparatus) are allowed with no restriction on height so long as the 

hedges do not block sightlines for drivers per Section 19.28.130(D) or pedestrians as determined by the 

Director. The Director may require trimming, removal, or other modifications to the hedge as required to 

promote and protect the public health, safety, and welfare. 

2. Height Limit Within Street Side Setbacks. Fences, walls, and hedges within a required street side 

setback shall not exceed 42 inches in height. A 50 percent transparent fence may be al-lowed within the 

setback area up to six feet in height. 

Again, they are making a distinction between a solid fence (42 inches) vs a transparent 

fence (6 feet.) 

 

 

3. Building Inspector Expense 

 I paid $50 for a fence permit.  Then the town paid the building inspector to come look at my 

yard and draw up a diagram of what height of fence I can have where.  He charges the town  

$120/hour to do this.  A friend came by and didn’t believe me when I told him about the fence 

ordinance so he went to the town hall and asked someone in the office who drew up a totally 

different diagram for him.  He then met with the inspector for clarification and the inspector 

showed him the same diagram he had made me, telling him the town was paying big money for 

him to be talking to him.  

 

 

 

106



 I propose that we  leave out the expense the town is paying for using the inspector in this way 

and instead make up a pamphlet, brochure, flyer or some such thing with instructions and 

photos demonstrating  what is permitted with illustrations and diagrams, taking into 

account the varying layouts of people’s property.  (Some of us don’t really have a “back” yard.). 

 

 

Here is an example of such a handout used in Durango: 

 

 

 

 

 

107



 

 

Here are some more examples of transparent fences that could illustrate transparency on the 

suggested brochure: 

 

 

108



 
 

109



 
 

 

 

 
 

 

110



 
 

111



 
 

 
 

112



 
 

 
 

113



 

114



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

115



In Summary 

 

1 .I would like to propose that if a fence is 50% or more transparent, that it can be any height up 

to 6 feet like Durango and West Hollywood.  Transparent will include wire fence, chain link 

fence, wrought iron fence, picket fence, etc.  It can include solid up to 42 inches with transparent 

ontop of that. 

2. In the 30 foot visibility triangle on corners, keep growth of greenery to 42 inches. 

 3. I would like the option that if a person has a fence that doesn’t keep their dog in that they can 

add a deer fence like they do in Ashland, Oregon, or can add transparent fencing to the top. I 

also propose that fence posts can be a foot higher than the fence. 

4. Let’s make a handout that illustrates whatever the new rules are so you don’t have to involve 

the building inspector and town staff in explaining this to each person. 

Please consider the town residents comments and look at alternatives so that we can arrive at a 

reasonable ordinance that is safe for motorists, pedestrians, and also user friendly to the 

property owners.  

If I don’t get the attachments in today in time, I will 

add them later. 

116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

June 24, 2019 
 

 

Great Outdoors Colorado Planning Grant 

Summary:   

Administrator Knight – informational discussion regarding re-applying for a Parks master 

planning grant. 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

136



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

June 24, 2019 
 

 

Employee Health Plan Renewal 

Summary:   

Discussion regarding employee health plan renewal options, deductibles, Town/Staff 

contribution. 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

137



138



139



140



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

June 24, 2019 
 

 

Clark Avenue Sewer Line Bid Review 

Summary:   

Staff requests Board direction regarding the Clark Avenue Sewer Line project.  Bids received 

are approximately $100,000 over anticipated project amount. 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

141



142



143



144



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

June 5, 2019 
 

 

Finance & Personnel 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

145



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

June 5, 2019 
 

 

Public Works/Utilities/Facilities 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

146



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

June 5, 2019 
 

 

Governmental Affairs/Public Safety 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

147



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

June 5, 2019 
 

 

Space to Create 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

148



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

June 5, 2019 
 

 

Tree Board 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

149



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

June 5, 2019 
 

 

Adjournment 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

150


	Top
	2. ASF 5 - Consent Agenda
	ASF 5 - Consent Agenda.docx
	0528.docx
	0611.docx

	9. US House Subcommittee on Energy & Minerals leasing reform legislation
	ASF - US Legislation Discussion.docx
	PKagendarequest.docx
	O&G Leasing Reforms Section by Section.docx (1).pdf
	2019-Restoring-Community-Input.pdf
	Sub-committee testimony 3225.pdf

	10. Midweek Market Proposal
	ASF - MidWeek Market.docx
	Market Town Proposal_.pdf
	Midweek Market-email Correspondence_Redacted.pdf
	Vendors Handout.pdf
	Delta County Vendor Waiver_.pdf

	11. Requested Discussion - Fence Height
	ASF - Fence Discussion.docx
	2019-02 Municipal Code Amendment - Fences, Hedges, and Walls.pdf
	Fence Building Dept.pdf
	Chain link fence photo.pdf
	Ridgway Fence Hedge Wall - code_6_4.pdf
	ashland fence ordinance.pdf
	West Hollywood Fence and Hedge Ordinance.pdf
	Durango fence ordinance.pdf
	fence document for town council by Deborah Spiegel.pdf
	fences report American Society of Planning.pdf

	12. Master Parks Planning Grant - GOCO
	ASF - GOCO Grant.docx

	14. Clark Avenue Sewer Line Bid Review
	ASF - Clark Sewer Line.docx
	Colored Coded Bid Abstract Clark Alley.pdf

	Bottom

